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A look back at the past

Collated as a reference for Urmston and District, this work is a guide only.
The Urban District referred to encompasses Urmston, Flixton, and Davyhulme.
It should be noted that this information is not for any commercial use. Any named persons
and or establishments are only entered when of value and do not carry any endorsement.

Acknowledgements go out to the libraries of Trafford, local historians, photographers,
along with friends, and family.

Preface

While every care has been taken for accuracy, any errors and omissions are unintentional. Many
indications are that words are misspelt, especially where reference is made to property names.
This not the case but how they were introduced originally in documentation of the past. Any
copyright issues are to be thought of as being forgivable due to the educational value with no
disregard or disrespect intended.

Many places are without detalil, it is hoped that one day more will be traced by other students of
the past who will continue this project with versions of their own.

The information herein has been gathered to enlighten readers about the district from its earliest
times through to today. As a record it can never be finished, time does not allow anything to
stand for long. The subject matter is none specific covering all and anything that might be of
interest to readers with enquiring minds and carry thoughts about the district they live in or used to
be a part of. The point is to enjoy the town, its past, and provoke memories for young and old.

Cover: Original Logo for the District

The earliest of times recorded show basic Celtic origins where two words reflect the era the words were
Bollin and Mersey. It was only from the 16™"-18™" centurys that development took place after the infuence of
the Danish invasions. Davyhulme was described as a “lonely place on high ground” and lands were often
Holmes. The Danes referred to farms as “Tuns” giving credibility to some therories of our origins. It took the
Medieval era to introduce the many halls such as Davyhulme, Urmston, Newcroft, Lostock, and Wittleswick.
The Hamlets, villages, and towns grew out from these especially if located near a church.

Any followers of the namings will understand that there are several differences of opinion regarding this.




e Abbotsfield Close. Flixton
The houses of the Close are numbered as 1-10 with no further detail. The Close is nowhere near anything “Abbotsfield” being off
Woodbridge Road at Woodsend.

e Abbotsfield Park. (Public)
Because of its location, on Chassen Road, it is also known as Chassen Park. This was once farmland as Abbots Pit Fields and
home to Rose Lea until ¢.1935, accounted for here were other Shawtown fields named as Moss
and Further Moss which were date around 1850. Its first amenity was the tennis court several
years before a bowling green was installed. The courts were accompanied by a Pavilion to the
side of Lime Avenue. Laid out for several soccer fields during the fifties this practice has been
halted. For many years the park hosted the Urmston Agricultural Show. The Flixton Veterans
Association. (Bowling) The Association was officially opened in 1948 with Councillors Wroe, Shaw,
and Carnall, in attendance. A Club House was built in 1965 by Vic Hallam Ltd. They had a new
pavilion in the park for 1972.

The earliest calling was as Flixton Recreational Ground, this was rechristened in 1945 to Abbotsfield Park as a commemoration to
the doctors, nurses and staff at the Hospital.

There is a specific reason that the bowling green surface was sunken into the ground. During the
war the area was dug out to fill sandbags leaving what became a natural hollow. Barrage Balloons
were also a presence here covering the open land and the Abbotsfield hospital. The turf used for
this green was reclaimed from the original green based at the Flixton Club on Flixton Road. This
was the second green for the park the first was sold to the Conservative Club adjoining the
Abbotsfield Premises.

For the present it includes a Model Railway Club and is the traditional site for the Guy Fawkes
bonfire night. An upgrade to the children’s play area is the latest venture supported by a Friends
Group called the Parkies. Council minuets of the 1930’s referred to this park as Flixton Park never Abbotsfield or Chassen.

May Day Steam. Abbotsfield Park

As a group the Urmston and District Model Engineering Society in association with the Lancashire
Traction Engine Club put on a show to celebrate the 15t May each year. The displays of old traction
engines, cars, organs, and machines of yesteryear were brought together for the amusement of
all. 2011 would have marked 30 years of this presentation but it has reached the end. A series of
events have forced the closure, economics, volunteers, local authority and taxes, all
understandably putting pressure on a day that will be sorely missed.

e Abbots Lane. Flixton
The origin of the Lane is now believed to have its grounding as connected to land in Shawtown
owned by Robert Abbot in 1630 and passed to Henry Abbot in 1674. This was then purchased
by Henry Smith about 1717. By 1755 Woods became the known family here. In early 1800
Abbots became Penny Lane that fell to be called Chassen Road. It gave forth the origin for the
park there and its surrounds to be so called. Abbotsfield and Abbotsford are derived from this.
In the original format this was the main road through Shawtown, and a toll was charged for its
use. As previously noted under Abbotsfield, the park origins go back to Abbots Pit Field.

e Abingdon Road. Davyhulme
There are 64 homes down Abingdon with no commercial units. The majority of these were built around 1935. They were numbered
as 1-66 but for reason unknown missing were 60 and 62. Later directories dropped the count to 61 homes showing some
correction. Abingdon is a town south of Oxford.

e Abodes.
Included with this information are many local houses or home names. Few had a number; each abode being listed by a name only.
It is hoped that over time more can be found to be of interest regarding these old buildings. Street
numbers shown are as they used to be, in many cases they have been reassigned for postal purposes.
Much has been traced through 'Sales' and 'To Let' adverts but in general it is only descriptive of the home
itself or records an early date for its establishment. Any further historical value still requires searching. It
should be understood that for the beginning years there was no real distinction between a cottage, a
house, or a terraced home, most were called by whatever the owner felt like.

Many homes after ww2 were called Sunshine Homes. This was a buzz word only in selling. Usually it
was a house with windows front and rear to the living room allowing light directly through the house. As a
guide to the past Flixton and Urmston, combined, had 376 homes accounted for in the 1841 census.

Land transactions indicate cottages, farms, and homes were being negotiated in 1700 and before. Dates shown in this document
are noted to be the earliest found and, in many cases, not the date of origin. Places like Woods Cottage and Lark Rise have
confirmed date stones showing the 1600’s. Shawtown information has been traced to the 1550’s.




Auction Houses.
Searching local advertisements show that the local hostelries were utilised as Auction Houses during the

1800's. In particular were the Nags Head, Church Inn, and the Lord Nelson, with the Red Lion to a lesser
extent. These establishments show prominence when it came to selling land, farms, and even cattle by
: auction. For the 1940's The Victoria Hotel became the center for real estate auctions in the district.

Big and small. Urmston

There was a time when Woolworths, Ridings, or the Electric Showrooms would have vied for
classification as the largest shop in town but progress dictates that this is redundant as supermarkets
abound and Sainsbury at Eden Square possibly takes the lead.

The smallest shop is much simpler as they do not come any smaller than this
place on Flixton Road. This shop has been operating for so many years it
seems unlikely that any other active business can match its record. The
corner door entry has been that way at least since the war but an actual date
has not been reached for a beginning as the block dates from c.1885.
Newspapers to eyebrows it has accommodated many business ventures.

A locksmith is open slightly down Flixton Road which is as small but as an extension of another building.

Boundary.
The subject of Urmston’s boundaries arises from time to time. There is no real answer to the question as it all depends on the year
that is requested Survey maps show different locations as the years moved on, albeit small changes. For many years the River

, - Irwell marked a boundary, but this was abolished after the canal was built thus, for example, some
early versions included large parts of Irlam around the area of the ferry. By the time the canal was
done Irlam had gained 114 acres from Flixton.

Roughly, Mayfair Avenue divides Urmston from Flixton and Moorside Road splits Flixton from
Davyhulme. The line at Stretford was drawn slightly after Firwood Avenue. There used to be a
phone booth marking that point, now gone. Political boundaries have also changed many times.

Builders.
To find who built the homes around Urmston is an almost impossible task. Before 1850 it is anyone’s guess
with stonemasons and trades people finding work wherever it came. After this period the Spark and Sons
yard became prominent with Mitchell & Spittall also in the business. A date of 1875 had Alltree & Jones
advertising for bricklayers in Urmston. Borthwick and Wright built in central Urmston but one absconded and
the other went broke in 1895. Few deeds show any names until around 1930 when it became a more
frequent practice.

Today Bainbridge, Maunders, Wimpy, Hosker, Modern Villas, Jones, Rough Cast, Wild Estates, Toft, Hill,
Locke, Bold Bros, Persimmon, McFarlane, Shawcross, Kerr and Co, with many more, are recorded and known for their craft. A
point of interest was that many classic homes were faced to the road with fancy or quality brickwork while the remaining structures
were completed with a stock brick out of sight. Rendering has altered the face of many homes for the current market.

Date Stones.

For the whole district one important factor aids research and that is where date stones have been included
in the construction. Some show times of 1600 to 1800 giving hints too with initials of either the builder or its
occupant. For one enterprising house this has being continued along Woodsend Road where a stone is
prominently displayed showing 2003 and some initialling. These stones cannot be rated as an accurate
source as instances show they were often installed after a home was built or rebuilt. The lettering was from
a surname, builders name, or to indicate a home name. These too could be etched in reverse order form
creating more difficulty in proof of what they were to mean.

Housing for Urmston.
Census records show that in 1921 there were 2,000 houses for the area. By 1961 this figure was 12,750. It was estimated that in
1966 the new total had reached 15,000.

Post War Homes. /‘ ;§Q

In November 1953 the 1,000™" dwelling built after the war was handed over to the [
occupants with full ceremony. The then Minister of Housing, Ernest Marples MP, '.
attended with Councillor Mrs. Royle-Higginson representing local authority. The \”6 Y

location of this home has not been disclosed however it is thought to have been
included in the ongoing Woodsend Estate.

Marples MP




Pre-fabs. Davyhulme

World War 2 neared its end and there was a shortage of housing.
(1940-44) Parallel to Lostock Road and on the Kingsway Park a
series of prefabricated houses were built. This was to be a
“temporary” measure fulfilling a need for the time with only 100
ordered. After 50 years, this temporary measure was replaced with
modern homes, today making up Dover Park. (1990). There was a
similar situation on Broadway, where prefabs had been erected in
1945 and were still in use ¢.1985.

Broadway Kingsway
The tender had included two bedrooms, a living room, bathroom, and a kitchen. A single tool shed came with the deal.

Real Estate.

The biggest local name in this game for the 1800's was Charles Royle. His reputation was beyond reproach when it came to the
handling of Farms and Estates nearly everyone used his talents. With not that many houses around in 1890-1900 it was no wonder
that Thomas Ogden Real Estate Office on Station Road was also the outlet for selling insurance. Further to this he was Secretary
for the Liberal Club in the Gladstone Building for many years.

Three examples for property pricing are, a two up and two down semi-detached on the Shaw Hall Estate in 1932 cost £475 and the
huge mansion called the Urmston Lodge was sold for £3,790 in 1958. The UUDC bought Flixton House and all
the grounds of the Worthington Wright Estate for under £70,000 in 1935.

F OR The most prolific real estate building ever advertised on offer for the district was Shaw Hall it appeared in the
SALE press with regular monotony. This was followed by Wibbersley, there was no market for the large homes of that

era, and both were eventually to become small estates with cluster housing.

When advertising a home, it was common practice to describe the building as practical as was possible for the
1800-1900 eras. Of concern would be the size, number of rooms, perhaps stabling would be important to the buyer. Later it was to
be Gas lighting, local water supply against a Well. Location too was high on the list as there was little in the way of transport.

It was only after 1950 that the new added features were included because they were almost a novelty. Piped water for example is
accepted today as would be a stove, and a kitchen sink but they were to be included when offering a home for sale. Some adverts
included the fact that electricity had been installed during the period of 1940. The term of “Newly beautified” was frequently used

around 1880. ‘

For years an inside toilet became a necessity that had to be advertised, termed as a w/c (Water Closet) it
was a luxury many didn’t have. Some went as far as including a fixed bath as against one you would hang
from a wall. (Tin Bath) Following the demise of horse transport stables fell by the wayside and on offer was
the Motor House. Electricity, the telephone, nearest bus route all began to appear to enhance the chances of
sale. Amenities today show central heating, air conditioning, and even burglar alarms as sales features.

e Acrefield Avenue. Urmston
This avenue has a start of ¢.1935 with 18 houses, listed as 1-19 number 18 was missing. It was common practice to have field
names given by their size or shape in the faming time of Urmston. This one is located in the Newcroft area as a no through road.

e Acregate Estate. Penny Bridge Lane Flixton
The site for Acregate was cleared of standing cottages in 1966, today it is comprised of 14 homes only one is flats. Odd numbers
only 1-27. This was the site of the Flixton Bath Cottages and after the war the Frank Roles Dairy. The Bird i'th Hand is a neighbour
as are the Acregate Cottages.

e Addison Road. Urmston 1900

Three Villas entered for this period, Dunheved, Edgcombe, and Endsleigh. The three are still
recorded as such into 1911. Accounted for in 2010 there were 13 houses that include the same
original villas.

The Villas gave forth some names for 1938 in Number 2 were Misses Patience and Kitty Gooddy;
No.4 had Thomas Emmett, No.8 John Jones, and last was John Faylor at number 10.

Dunheved Villas. Addison Road
The occupants of this semi-detached villa for 1901 were John S. Spurr and Harry Morton. This
was the first of the three villas set on the north side of the road.




Edgcombe Villas. Addison Road
A pair of semidetached located in the center of three villas along the north side of the road. In 1901
William George Grisdale and George Morton were the homeowners.

Endsleigh Villas. Addison Road
The end home of three in a row on the north side of the road in 1901, the villa was home to
George Frederick Walkden and William Burrow.

e Albany Court. Off Moorside Road Urmston
1-47 occupied premises the detail available is that the complex was opened by Battle of Britain “Ace” Johnny Johnson in 1967. A
link for its name is based on the Duke of Albany.

e Albert Avenue. Urmston
This housing from 1870-1875 gave home to the early Urmston families that settled in the area.
First noted as Albert Grove it was a single sided road of homes 1-43 west. Terraced on both
sides of the avenue by 1901, the 19 units west and 15 on the east side all un-named. The
avenue was one of two entrances leading the Jewish cemetery. An update for 2010 it had an
added number of homes which totalled 40. Probably named for Prince Albert the Queens
Consort, Albert Avenue in Flixton was changed to Bromley.

Lonsdale. Albert Grove (Avenue)
A four-bedroomed semidetached home only traced as of 1913 but without detail.

e Alderley Road. Flixton 1900
No names for the terraces on both sides of the road, 16 units west and 15 on the east side. Six
of the semidetached homes went on offer by auction in 1906 they were a portion of the Bennett
families’ holdings from Calder Bank Farm who had purchased the plots from a Miss. Alderley in
1894. Expanding by 1911 west numbered as 1-51 and east 2-56. Completed around 1920, o R —
there were 56 houses in 2010. S g

Two shops, one each side of Alderley, are recorded for the 1900’s. The first is shown as of 1903
with Whitefield and Pridd operating as a chemist. George Marsden was engaged as manager and
later Edward Shuttleworth became Chemist in 1938. The second came as Samuel Woolly in
1908 he worked as a grocery business for the area. By 1919 the grocer shared with John Henry
Pearcy who sold fish. Reece a baker, and Platt a greengrocer, came next and into the 1939-40
age. Lastly for 1986 H. Boyd carried a grocery and provision store here. Both have been re-
instated to normal dwellings and both could be addressed as Flixton Road.

e Aldermere Crescent. Flixton
The Crescent was established in 1935 and has 54 homes.

e Allen Road. Urmston (Stretford Road)
There was one building there in 1903 Hope Cottage which advanced to 14 by 1909. On the west side were 6 homes while east the
two separated from the rest included Hope Cottage. Thereafter Elsinore Terrace and the end
home called lvydene completed the road.

The street register in 1911 switched Ivydene to the west side but nothing else had changed.
Fairholme was a named home found for 1940. The land at No.21 became available in 1972 for
building on.1928 showed no change with only Hope Cottage in name. Differing for 1938 the first
two west side houses were Lyngarth and Lynwood. Burnside came in on the east side as
neighbour to Hope Cottage which was followed by The Homestead at Elsinor Terrace. This road
comprised of 27 properties at the time of 2010.

Bakery. 6 Allen Road

This shop faced house was once the bakery connected to its back neighbour of Chasewood on Gilpin
Road. It was established by the owner Wyllie, around 1910. For that time access would have been via
Gilpin. Edward Dunbar was baker for 1928. Since that time, it has been home to a variety of business
baring no resemblance to its origins. There is a connection to the Gilpin bakery of Charles Williamson.

Burnside. 4 Allen Road
Alex Thomas Whyte could be found here in 1938. The house on the east was semidetached along with Fairholme.




Elsinor Terrace. Allen Road

The terrace of five homes could be found on the east end of the road in 1911. This road was
once a cul-de-sac at this time and photographs show the terrace still there today as it continues
into Rock Road. Early documents had it numbered as 1-5 but as it is known they should be even
numbered and this has changed for today, 20-28.

Fairholme. 2 Allen Road
Advanced for sale as of 1952 this three-bed semi was standard as any in its offerings. Not known until 1938 when it appeared in
directories for the first time. This east side pairing had William Spiby in Fairholme which was paired to Burnside. These

semidetached houses lead off all buildings on the east side for today.

Hope Cottage. 8 Allen Road

The cottage in the 1898 directory was to be the first and only building in the road on the east side it
housed Edward Bridge for this year. Miss Ellen Brown took her place here during 1938-39. The cottage
has doubled in size from its early beginnings; it presents itself as the small white-faced portion of the
current building. Home to the Fry family for many years before they moved to Newcroft House

Ivy Dene. Allen Road

This home was one of several that used the house of Normanhurst as a postal guide to its location. The home sat towards the end
of the west side and followed Elsinor. The owner for 1909 was Luke Norbury living on this, at that time, no thoroughfare. The home
disappeared once Allen became a through road.

Lyngarth. 3 Allen Road
The resident for 1938 was Walter Butterworth who shared the semi with Lynwood.

Lynn Dene. 19 Allen Road
Norman Gooddy is named for 1938 in the west side home that partnered with number 21.

Lynwood. 5 Allen Road
1938 had Harold Denyer registered for this house mated with Lyngarth.

Oak Dene. 7 Allen Road
The dene shows as a semi connected to number 9, Thomas Copely in house for 1938.

The Homestead. Allen Road
William Fletcher, who was a plasterer, took this ‘home’ for his home in 1938.This house once featured as neighbour to Elsinor
Terrace.

e Alton Avenue. Flixton
There are 10 homes numbered evenly 2-20. No further detail known. The calling is from medieval English, ‘Old town’.

e Ambleside Road.
As aroad it was established c. 1910-1915 with the first homes being built there. Prior to this time Ambleside was treated as an
extension of Parsonage Road with all homes named and addressed as such. For real estate this road took off around 1937 when a
builder called C. Jeffries offered a new estate called the Nico Fields this has blossomed into 76 homes and 3 flats were built

€.2003.

1928 had: Belvedere, Fairhaven, Claremont, Silverdale, Mollington, Lacona, Woodgarth,
Lodore, Grasmere, Heycroft, The Nook, Fryston, Rathbone House, West View, Wyresdale,
Chez Nous, Lansdowne, Bruck lay, Wyncot, Northleigh, Craigmore, Marleholme, Treeton
House, Barton upon Irwell Council Office Flixton, Parish Council Office, Maxwell, Rydal,
Inglewood, Fairholme, and Dunard. A public footpath from Irlam Road to Ambleside was to
be stopped in 1934 for new road construction. As far back as 1892 George Bent and Samuel
Reade were at loggerheads over lands which were to form Western Road.

Ambleside Care Home. 26 Ambleside Road.
This is newer accommodation for the elderly in Flixton. The word has Viking origins meaning ‘Farm’ or ‘Pasture’.

Ambleside House. Parsonage and Western Roads.

Barton upon Irwell and Parish Offices

This became a story of its own known as Ambleside House.

Between Reade House and Parsonage Avenue was the Ambleside House. Parsonage
was later to be claimed for Ambleside Road. George Prescott Bent was in residence

there for many years from the 1880s and until he died in 1911 it was the only house on
the south side. His son George Henry Bent took over the residence at this time.
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A description in 1924 listed: Five bedrooms, three entertaining rooms, dressing room, bathroom, all mod cons. Outside was a
garage, tennis lawn, stables and paddock, all situated on four acres of land that had an orchard. A current resident has added the
facts of cellars and timber beams dating back to 1771 should be included, the beams probably brought in for a later re-construction
as it is known that the date of origin is 1873. This particular acreage north of the railway line was called Ambleside as an entity.

The house has been involved in many changes of use since its inception. First as a residence up to 1925 followed by the Flixton
Parish Council who eventually moved after the amalgamation into the Urban District 1933. The Lancashire Council took home there
next and, besides using it for offices they opened a school for youths. This was under the name of the Lancashire Education
Committee. The tale continues with a home for the elderly ¢.1990 until it has, for now, returned as a home once more. 2004

The Flixton Council was addressed as Barton upon Irwell Rural Urban District Council Offices Township of Flixton, Ambleside
Road. For the time of 1928 the Clerk was Charles Faulkner, he gave this information to the enumerator collecting on behalf of the
Slaters Directories. Fact shows that this was Ambleside House coupled to Western Road for its beginnings.

»  Flixton Council. (12 members) Ambleside Road
The offices were at 26 Ambleside where they held their last meeting in 1933 as amalgamation with Urmston took place. Two
leading characters of note serving on this council were Lt. Gen. Samuel Stott and Squire Samuel Worthington Wright. The longest
recorded service was held by Samuel Heywood Esqg. who was in seat from 1904 to 1933. The council’'s documentation is held at
the Lancashire Records Office with regard to the minutes of meetings held. (1910-1933)

» Lancashire Education Committee. Area 33 Office. 26 Ambleside Road
Once the council moved out from this address due to amalgamation with Urmston in 1933, the committee moved in. At that time,
you could talk to R. Whittaker B.A. who was left in charge. In 1948 council terminated the lease on this building.

Under the same address was the caretaker Mrs Helen Lawson and working there too was George Frederick Smith who was the
Relieving Officer for Urmston, Flixton, Davyhulme, Irlam, Cadishead, and Barton.

A renaming has taken place it is now called The Ark. A few changes have been made along the way with the Education Committee
adding a wing, the stables were removed, and the house extended at the rear. It has been made somewhat more practical inside,
but the front facade remains for the future.

Belvedere. Ambleside Road
A 1928 listing had husband and wife operating from this home, Ernest Usherwood was a joiner and his wife, Elizabeth, a
hairdresser. The house was noted as being the first building by position along the road.

Bruck Lay. Ambleside Road
Only a name associated with a home and no other detail for 1928 it was Percy Smith.

Chez Nous. Ambleside Road
French language may have been a strong point for Frederick Thomas Reece when he lived here in 1928. This has a meaning of
'Where we live.’

Claremont. Ambleside Road
This, as a 1928 version of Claremont, had Cyril Whittaker dwelling in the place.

Craigmore. Ambleside Road
The home of Walter Palmer in 1928 was called this.

Dunard. Ambleside Road
Feeling hard-done-by was Walter Wrigley during 1928 as he made home in the house.
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Fairhaven. Ambleside Road
This house was occupied by George Scott in 1928 he was a Clerk of Works.

Fairholme. Ambleside Road
An Engineer called Gribber was comfortable here in this house during 1928.

Ay 1928 Fairholme

Fryston. Ambleside Road
A window cleaner of 1928 lived here at the corner of Devon Avenue his name was George Haynes.

Grassmere. Ambleside Road

To be correct this was the only home of this name that should be called Grassmere as it was
the only house anywhere near being at the Grassmere corner of the avenue. Henry
Chadderton, as owner for 1928, lived there.

Heycroft. Ambleside Road
Herbert Ravenscroft had reason to spell this home in this way when he lived here in 1928.

Inglewood. Ambleside Road
Moses Whittaker described himself as a Master Builder in 1928 as he lived in the built-up home.




Lacona. Ambleside Road
This house in 1928 had Charles Kirkman as resident.

Lansdowne. Ambleside Road
John Tynan, who was a farmer, occupied the home in 1909. Then by 1928 an accountant called John Baird, with a string of letters
after the name, resided in the home.

Lodore. Ambleside Road
The home sat at the corner of Grasmere Road with 1928 resident James Dobson.

Marleholme. Ambleside Road
The relevant 1928 “holme” of Frederick Lambert whose occupation was not stated for the directory entry.

Maxwell. Ambleside Road
Living in the house of Maxwell for 1928 was William Edward Wilson.

Mollington. Ambleside Road
William Tunnicliff, a salesman, lived in this home for 1928. Mollington is the name of a Cheshire village.

North Leigh. Ambleside Road
1928 saw Harry Thompson as residing in the house he was a Tax Official according to the street entry for this period.

Rathbone House. Ambleside Road
In 1928 Mrs. Margaret Appleton called it home.
Rathbone House
Rydal. Ambleside Road
Arthur Shaw found home here in 1928.

Silverdale. Ambleside Road
This was the house where William Woollam made his home for 1928.

The Ark. 26 Ambleside Road
A new christening for this home, the original name has been established it was Ambleside House.
A religious group practicing Maranatha have installed the biblical title for their community residence.
TR VN It was home to the Flixton Council for many years followed by the Lancashire Education Committee.
| p— The access to the grounds would have been through what is now Reade Avenue following the

% 1+ _:_,’3 R o asE Western Road pattern and address from days gone by. (See Ambleside House)
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The Nook. Ambleside Road
The name of Nook seemed to be popular for the early years and for 1928 Sydney Cohen followed suit. His home was on the corner
of Devon Road.

Treeton House. Ambleside Road
Leonard Mayer was at home here in 1928.

West View. Ambleside Road
A draughtsman called Frank Hayes had this view in 1928 as he lived on Ambleside.

Woodgarth. Ambleside Road
Lawrence Yates made this his home for 1928.

Wyncot. Ambleside Road
No detail for the 1928 house other than its resident of the time, Wilfred Grey

Wyresdale. Ambleside Road
A ‘Collector of tax’ lived in this home for 1928. His name was John Lewis.

e Amersham Close. Davyhulme
The Close has its origins from 1935 and has 56 properties to its name. The estate is joined by Bexley Close. In Saxon days it would
have been called Agmondesham, a Manor, which has been corrupted into its present name.

e Anchorage Road. Urmston
Only 8 houses here with no known detail. The name arrives from the old house that once sat there called Anchorage. It was
officially named in 1966 in agreement with Council and the Post Office

e Andrews Avenue. Davyhulme
Numbered as 1-19, nothing is known to elaborate on. The avenue is not far from the golf course and may hold some significance to
St. Andrews the famed Scottish course.
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e Arran Gardens. Davyhulme
An interesting division for the Gardens where it covers three distinct roads off Shetland Way, they incorporate 51 homes into this
complex situation. Arran is a Scottish word which means ‘Island Dweller’.

e Arundel Avenue. Flixton
The majority of the 131 homes around this almost circle were built here in 1970 and out of all this only one is flats. ‘Eagle Valley’ is
the OId English meaning to the Arundel calling. Barton upon Irwell was home to the Arundel Farm an 1800 vintage establishment.

e Ascot Drive. Flixton
Built in 1960 the Drive has 24 homes and is a no thoroughfare. Ascot is named from Old English which has the meaning of
‘Cottage’.

e Ashbourne Avenue. Flixton
Only 10 houses make up the avenue. An interesting derivation, the word Ashbourne means ‘Dweller at the Ash tree’ in Old time
English.

e Ashburton Road. Davyhulme
The road was an extension to Redclyffe after Dumplington Circle it was treated to sewers as an update to its construction in 1932.
A footbridge installed at the road was a Leeming design of 1928 this was demolished in 1958

e Ashfield Road. Urmston 1900
- Well established by 1880, on the west side Caxton Villas led to Addison Road. This incorporated
2 several houses including Sunnyside, Daisy Bank, Fern View, and Holly Bank. Clover Nook was
the last home before Higher Road. The Urmston Tennis Club Co. offered its grounds close to the
corner of Higher Road for 1898. To the east starting at No.2 which was unnamed, were Lily
Villas, Beulah Villas, Raymond Terrace, and Stanley Grove. The directory for 1911 shows
Mossey Dell at 21 named but nothing else changed. Newer homes arrived in 1935 and today
2010 it comprises of 40 properties, 6 of these are flats.

Ash-Lea. Ashfield Road
A residence offering for 1939 numbered as 26 and sitting at the corner of Stanley Grove with Mrs Lily Moorhouse at home. Ash had
been there though since ¢.1880.

Caxton Villa. 5-7 Ashfield Road

The Villa is to be found on the west side of the road and it was the home of John Jackson at
number 5 and Arthur Gilmore at number 7 in 1901. Numbers 1 and 3 turned up for 1911 but the
issue was resolved once more in 1919 reverting to 5-7.

Sunnyside. Ashfield Road "
This offering could be found in 1898 under the heading of Caxton Villas, living in the shade was William Bolan for that year. As a
Semi it was attached to Mossy Dell.

Dell and Sunny

| Mossey Dell. Ashfield Road
. The Dell (right hand of two) was numbered as 19-21 in 1911 and home to Allan Schofield who
. lived on the west side of the road. The associated home was Sunnyside for this pair. At the front
entry the spelling is that of Mossy Dell.

Daisy Bank. Ashfield Road

Reference is made to this home in 1898 at number 23 with Mrs. A. Edleston the householder. By 1911 the west side house was
occupied by Arthur Giles. Daisy was one of six along this collection of Villas, its partner was Fern
Bank earlier named as Fern View, and only the following pair was named.

Daisy and Fern

Fern View. Ashfield Road (Fern Bank)

Number 25 Ashfield was called Fern Bank in 1901 and it had Elizabeth Mary Starkey living there
with Elizabeth Wilkinson. Making up the pair was Daisy Bank in a group of six along this section of
the road. Records show Fern View was the calling slightly earlier in 1889 with the Barlow family at
home. The stone post at the present gate confirms this. The mistake probably occurred in recording
the pair as Daisy Bank.

Holly Bank. Ashfield Road

1889 showed that Walter Johnson had occupancy with Henry Marrison, a bookkeeper, living here at number 27 in 1901. In a row of
six this end one was mated to Clover Nook. The frontage was renovated in 2009 and the gate has possibly been re-installed to
accommodate a wider entry.
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Clover Nook. Ashfield Road

This home came up for auction in 1881 complete with contents. The Nook sat as the closest
semidetached house to Higher Road in 1901 with Walter Johnson at home. The house was
numbered as west 29 and next door was Holly Bank. An engineer called James Dannah took
Walters home in 1909. 2009 saw the exterior renovated in line with the other six homes coupled for
the block. The pair are presented today as though they were both under the name of Holly, this
could be by the moving of the gate posts.

Lily Villa. 6 Ashfield Road

The home, a semidetached, was on the east side of the road for that period with Baker and Gilmore
families in residence 1898. The building shows a stone initialled as W J 1874 as it does with the
neighbour Beulah Villa. Records have it that John Wood lay claim to both.

Beulah Villa. Ashfield Road

The Villa built in 1874 was numbered as 10 and 12 with John Wood and John Smethurst respectively
at home here. It could be found on the east side for 1901. It carries a date stone initialled as W J
suggesting John Wood had both built. The neighbouring Lily Villa shows the same mark.

Raymond Terrace. Ashfield Road

A typical home on the terrace for 1880 would have been four bedrooms, parlour, sitting room,
kitchen and scullery, and bathroom. Two cellars under and added was the feature of bay windows.
Seven homes made up this terrace on the east side, which were numbered 14-26 in 1898. Residing
here at No. 26 were William Prescott and daughter Hannah who were the owners of Jawbone
Cottage on Davyhulme Road until 1930 when the Burgess family bought it.

Stanley Grove. Ashfield Road

Two homes made up Stanley in 1873 with Alfred James Wood in one and Frederick Matley in the
other. The semi was in the corner of the grove on the east side. Only 3 family homes make the Grove
for the current times which is small and hard to find off Ashfield. The pair was called Stanley before
the road followed suite in name. The main house of Stanley had five bedrooms, two receiving rooms,
kitchen, bathrooms, laundry, cellar, attic, and a garage.

Un-named No. 2 Ashfield Road
From the picture the house can be seen as neighbour to the Nelson Bowling Green

Urmston Boy Scouts & CLB Headquarters. Ashfield Road
The scouting group ended the road at Higher in 1938.

e Ashley Avenue. Flixton
1-6 numbered houses make up Ashley which is a no thoroughfare, whose name comes from ‘Ash Wood'.

e Ashworth Avenue. Flixton
This small avenue has 8 homes. Ashworth has Anglo-Saxon beginnings and comes from the family that once lived in the Chapelry
of Ashworth in Lancashire. This is a no through road with only one home found as named, it was Ramilies with as 1934 resident Mr.
J. T. Wilkinson.

e Atherton Lane. Flixton
The lane was a localised calling related to the family of Atherton. It is doubtful it ever carried any official recognition.
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e Atkinson Road. (Atkinson Street 1928) Urmston 1900
The west side was home to the West EIms, this included EIm Bank House with The ElIms and Oxford Mount. On the east side of
the road the Victoria Villas. Housing and land here were for sale in 1881 to give indication of its origin. 2008 has many flats here
and numbering which contains alphabetical addition to the 37 properties. Schofield Motors at numbers 21-23 closed up here in
1958. Glebe House was built on the road in 1975. Suggested for the word origin is Son of Adam, Atkin is medieval for Adam.

1928 added a cafe called The Empress Cafe and The Morris Hall showed as the Morris Lecture Hall. Three flats appeared at
number 25 for the first recorded time. Later 1938 the Kiosk appeared at the corner shop and Van the Radio Man under the roof of
the covered market. Lillicrap was a building merchant and next to the Hall was Elizabeth Greenhalgh as a chiropodist. For 2014
there is only one block, West EIms, which remains from all the historical past for the road.

Borland and Son. W. J. 1 Atkinson Road
A company operating along here in 1940-7, they were French Polishers by trade and did refurbishing to furniture of all kinds.

Elm Bank House. Atkinson Road

1898 saw this house at the end of the block called West EIms and not numbered. Mathew
Wheeler lived there at that time. A Christening for 1893 showed this address making it earlier
than first thought. Disappearing from view nothing was written for here until the appearance of
the Morris Hall.

Friendship Social Club. 29 Atkinson Road
1939 Hon. Sec. John Quinn gave this address for members and friends.

Morris Hall. Atkinson Road

1911 is noted as the opening date, it was carried out by Keir Hardie a
politician. This hall was the home of the Labour Party for Stretford and
Urmston. It has been found that the name of Morris arrives from William
Morris 1834-1896. He was a general founder of the Labour movement in
its infancy. The hall carried an addition to the name during 1928 it was
known as the Morris Lecture Hall. The calling now included the Urmston,
Flixton, and Davyhulme Labour Party. The Hon. Sec. at this time was E.
P. Williams; he was still there for 1939.

Hardie

Staincross. 35 Atkinson Road

The last house on the west side of Atkinson and Gloucester Roads was where Richard Lillicrap lived in 1928. He was the inventor of
the Lillicrap Hone a razor blade sharpening tool. The area here now is industrialised and no longer shows any residences. Joseph
Richard also ran a business next door to the Kiosk as a builder's merchant, he owned the majority of the property on Atkinson.

Lillicrap Hone. (Staincross)

Joseph Richard Lillicrap, an Urmston man, lived in the home called ‘Staincross’ 35 Atkinson
Road and ¢.1930 he invented something called the Lillicrap Hone. After Gillette patented his
safety razor it was found that blades lost their edge very quickly, the Hone idea corrected this
problem in allowing blades to be kept sharp after the use of this tool. The Hones were
manufactured in Barnsley by a company called Wood Bros. Glass Co. Ltd. Any hones traced
today would date from 1930-1942, they have become collector’s items. The land where one was
to find the Urmston covered market was owned by him and called Lillicrap Field.

The Elms. Atkinson Road
A home of 1898 situated midway along the west of the road. At home was Henry Edward Wilkinson. It was attached to Oxford
Mount alongside with the same address.

The Empress Café. Atkinson Road

The cafe was run by Courtney Beer in 1928 with a listed occupation of confectioner. The cafe would
have sat opposite the cinema on the west side of the road and as a portion of the block called West
Elms. A change of owner and name the café became The Kiosk and had Miss Ida Seed as the
confectioner in 1938. The Kiosk remained into the 1950’s as sweets and tobacco.

O’Connor. P. Atkinson Road
Building and civil engineering was the business here, the address showed only as a site or yard.

Oxford Mount. Atkinson Road
No detail had been traced for this place entered in the 1891 census for the district until a directory for 1898 brought up George
Dreber in occupation. The home sat with The Elms as neighbour.

Ridehalgh & Co. Atkinson Road
One of several industrial business’s that occupied land along Atkinson. This was held by J. A. Ridehalgh who was into Electrical
contracting for the 1950’s.

Van (The radio man) Turned up on Atkinson for 1938 at number 1 which was situated at the covered market there through into the
1950’s. Advertised, as engineers were Bennett and Seymour.
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Victoria Bowling Club. Atkinson Road
Although it was established as a part of the hotel it had its own address as number four on the west side of Atkinson.

Victoria Villas. Atkinson Road
This Villa was to be found on the east side of Atkinson in 1898 and at the corner of Higher Road. It was a pair of homes with the
families of Crew and Wilkinson in residence. For position it sat opposed to the Victoria Hotel Bowling Club.

West Elms. 1-7 Atkinson Road
Suited to its name it sat on the west side of the road in 1898, a block of four, with a notable resident the Reverend J. Woodford-
Causer of the Congregational Church who lived at number 3. One of the homes belonged to Mr. & Mrs. Baerlocker in 1906.

e Auburn Drive.
This newer housing is connected to the Auburn Lodge’s past in that the retaining wall between
the houses and the motorway belonged to the barn of the old farm creating a link to the
present. Of the 28 houses many were only introduced to Urmston around 1965. Nothing odd
about the name, it means ‘reddish brown’.

e Avondale Crescent. Davyhulme
Although numbered as 1-54 there are actually only 39 properties built on. An Avon was a ‘river crossing’ or ‘Ford’ during earlier
times.

e Aylesbury Avenue. Davyhulme
This No thoroughfare showed up in 1938 as a block of 23 houses.

B

e Back Urmston.
An early name for Higher Road, (Front being Stretford Road) Much cross reference is needed when searching Higher Road as it
was called this for many of its early years. The homes and farms are dated from ¢.1840 they include several of the side roads for
address purposes. 1871 showed a farm and orchard settled in at Back, Ciss, and Jack Lane, with other places like Lorne and
Chapel Grove noted as being Back Urmston.

e Bakeries.
Local bake shops or bakeries were a plenty in old Urmston. Entries are made where detail is
available. Grangewood, one of the first, took home in what was the Chapel of the Urmston
Grange in 1894. Another, Shephard and Newton, started in Railway Road 1906 then by 1919
was at the corner of Lime Ave and Flixton Roads and called H. Shephard. For a small added
interest, the late Isinglass too was once a bake shop and grocery store owned by Joe Powell in
the 1950’s. Princess Road hosted Walkers for many years and Williamson had an early bakery
on Gilpin called Chasewood.

Shephard Bakery Davyhulme View

Flixton Bakery. Woodsend Road

The bakery existed on the corner of Irlam Road in 1915 it ran as a grocery shop at the same time. Included in the business were a
home with all appurtenances, stabling and shed. The bakery itself was made up from modern ovens, a mixing department and
storeroom housing other bakery items.

Shephard. Herbert George Edward 1875-1942
As a baker in Urmston he was one of many. He is singled out here, as the information is
available and should be recorded. After serving an apprenticeship in

- Chesterfield, Herbert opened his first shop at 75a Railway Road in 1906, it
was a partnership called Shephard and Newton. This lasted until 1919 and
then the Shephard Bakery at Lime and Flixton Road was opened. During
the summer months ice cream was produced at the shop as a sideline. The
difference to bakeries that followed was that the main product here was
bread whereas the trend later was more into confectionery. Once the
Davyhulme View bakery closed up towards the mid-1940’s the shop was
taken by Gerald Furnivall who continued without the bakery and as a
general store.

Snig Pie.

This local delicacy for the district was made from eels caught from the River Mersey in abundance.
Specific reference has been found for the Roebuck Hotel carrying the pies specially to enhance its home
brewed ales as an accompaniment in the early days of catering. Jellied eel is still a tasty dish for some
food connoisseurs.
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e Balfour Road. Urmston 1900
Terraced on one side only, Balfour had 25 homes in a row. As a road it crosses the boundary
between Flixton and Urmston. (Princess Road) For present day 2010 it has 27 homes with 1 only
flat. Balfour is a Gaelic word meaning Grazing Land.

e Ballater Avenue. Flixton
There are only 8 homes on this avenue off Balmoral Road. The order of St. Johns in Scotland is the origin for this historical name.

e Balmain Road. Davyhulme
Started in ¢.1930, 25 homes make up the road. The council accepted responsibility by paving the road with asphalt in 1934. The
word Balmain appears to have strong Australian connections, but nothing defined.

e Balmoral Avenue. Flixton
Alongside Chassen Station the cul-de-sac has 18 houses from the 1935 era. The artist Tom Dodson lived down here during his
lifetime in Flixton with another known, a retailer Norman Fairman, who had a TV and radio shop on Church Road.

e Balmoral Road. Flixton
The residential count for the road is 59. Scottish in origin and it means, from the majestic village. In its early days the road only had
ten homes plus the Chassen Farm of Shawtown, 1938 brought forth that Joseph Bancroft was in control of the acreage.

Owner Occupiers ‘Builders’ Association. Balmoral Road

This group of people formed in 1953 as an association to conform with Councils requirements when
it came down to building their own houses. The basis of the Councils rules was that each member
would have to work for twenty hours a week and that none of the houses would be transferred to
their owners until the whole project was complete. It was suggested that this method of building
could cut costs by 30%. A portion of local pathways was half lost to this road. It was accepted due to
the road and its pavement still providing access to the original path leading to Penny Bridge.

Shawtown Farm. Balmoral Road (Aka. Chassen Farm)

The farm known for 1777 was run by the Faulkner’s in 1800, until E. J. sold up in 1881, was quite a good size, 48 acres, and the
house had a central front door created by a double front window. Its two stories comprised of a hall,
sitting room and kitchen complete with pantry and storeroom. Two roomy family rooms made up the
ground floor one of which had a billiard table. A feature of the hall was its large flagstone flooring
marked with diamond fashioned inlays. Another excellent feature was its curved stairway leading
from the hall complete with wooden banister. A landing halfway was dressed in a tall window and
sitting arrangement. The second floor had four bedrooms and a box room. Barns, a hen house, and
two horse stables formed a square made of cobblestones with a 30 stall shippon and hay barn
located separately. Census gives Josiah Collier as farming in 1841 he was the son of Sam and Ann
who had moved to Flixton from Carrington.

The name of note here was Bernard Close, who took over from a family called Bancroft; he and later Ken Close ran the farm from
1946 until moving to Acregate ¢.1956 and stayed there until that too fell to the UUDC. The council, after purchasing the land from
the Wright family, proffered the land to contractors in 1979 for the building of flats and bungalows to suit the elderly. This land is
now a modern estate of homes called Townfield. Confirmed is that Jack Kelly became the last farmer.

e Barcombe Close. Urmston
The small close near Winchester Road has no detail available for its origins. Combe is a Sussex/Devonshire word.

e Barn Close. Flixton
The Close in Woodsend has 9 houses.

e Barnfield
The Barnfield of 1909 was a no through road with all but two homes named: The Vron, Holmsdale, Teviotdale, The Moorings,
Craigwood, Roker, Kingswood, Brooklyn, Strathallen, Woodseats, Nundah, Id wal, Penpol, Froxmer,
and Cressbrooke. In 1911 the names of others came to light they were, Holmesdale, which became
Hopedene, Wallaroo, Hillcrest, Woolengabba, and Luxmi.

The house of Northwood became known as at 1918, the newer homes have an average date of 1920
and make up the total today of 55. The road eventually became a throughway from Church Road to
Southgate. Later discovered were the names of Cotton Stones and Barrinka in 1947, Caernarvon
Gate 1956, although established many years prior to this.

The houses of Barnfield are almost impossible to identify as they changed names repeatedly over the ensuing years very few
have gate posts or signs to show anything of value in this regard. One home carries a date identification of 1926 but not a name.
The calling of Barnfield arrives from the field on which it was established.

By the time 1928 arrived there were 28 homes making up Barnfield and every one of them had a name. The list was long: The
Vron, Holmdale, Northwood, The Moorings, Craigwood, Cribden, Kingswood, Brooklyn, Strathallen, Hopedene, Calder Bank,
Homestead, Carrington, Foxmer, Hillcrest, Nashdon, Newlands, Lupin Lodge, Lochaber, Inglewood, Heathwood, Camborne,
Rosemont, Heversham, Littlecroft, Merseyside, Lea side, and Newlyn.
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Barrinka. 32 Barnfield

The house was average for the area, a three-bedroomed semi with a lounge, dining room with French windows, kitchen, bathroom,
etc. Outside had a coal house and there was room for a garage. Mrs Florence Greenway called this home during 1938-39. It was
newly erected c.1937.

Brooklyn. Barnfield
This no through road for the time, was getting going in 1908. To assist in its development James Hobson found home here. As a
semidetached it sat alongside Strathallen.

Calder Bank. 21 Barnfield

This was home to Sarah McLachlan in 1918 and it was put up for sale on her sad passing. It was a modern detached home for the
period with 4 bedrooms and a box room. The balance was made up with 3 entertaining rooms, a square hall, kitchen, cellar, etc.
The garage accompanied by pretty gardens which completed the description. The purchaser Charles Green kept it until the 1920’s.
On to 1938 it showed as now in the hands of Fred Challis.

Camborne. 20 Barnfield
Wilfred Kay an engineer was living there in 1928, he was there into 1939 with perhaps more years to add.

Carrington. Barnfield

1919 showed this home newly named along Barnfield and at that time the house was known to have been in existence somewhat
earlier. Only in lists of 1924 did it present a homeowner that of Frederick Sproston Bowen. Fred was unfortunate as he was
declared bankrupt and the Electrical Maintenance Company that he owned had to close.

Cotton Stones. 47 Barnfield
Several homes down on Barnfield changed callings over the years this one is presented for today 2010 as an offering in this light. A
name from the past here was 1939 and George Whiteley.

Craigwood 9 Barnfield

A 1909 detached home, but with little detail of its content. There were four bedrooms, and to
compliment the rest of its seven rooms, there were cellars. The open view at the rear was an
optimum sale point. Thomas Mitchell looked out at this south eastern picture in that year with Mrs
Rabina Mitchell inheriting for 1927. By 1938 it belonged in the hands of Miss Jane Mitchell.

Cressbrooke. Barnfield

The last entry for 1908 in the street directory for Barnfield showed this home ending the road. Alfred Galle was resident there.
According to lists, Mrs. Lucy Mills had this changed to Woolengabba for her term there in 1911. Barnfield altered names frequently
so this is unconfirmed. Description wise it was 4 bedroomed with a box room and a large panelled dining room opened on to a
conservatory. The hall led to the lounge and dining room adding kitchen and scullery as other features.

Cribden. Barnfield
The calling for another often changed home along Barnfield this one noted for 1925 as an available early date.

Foxmer. Barnfield

This was the next to the last house along the new road for 1908 with William Wilson looking after it. The detached home contained
three entertaining rooms, kitchen and scullery, hall and wide landing, four bedrooms, bath and w c, later explaining there was space
for a garage.

Haynes. 2 Barnfield
As it was with many named homes on Barnfield this may well have been something else for earlier times. Harold Clarke took it in
1938 under any previous naming.

Heathwood. 18 Barnfield
Found for 1928 this wood was established for Bertram Dune as his home there, he remained through to 1939 and on.

Hillcrest. 4 Barnfield
T Built ¢.1908 this was an early home for Barnfield. A detached, double fronted house which had and entrance
| hall, drawing room, dining room with a three windowed bay and inglenook, a study, kitchen with scullery and
pantry. The upper level had four bedrooms and a bathroom. The home showed a partial cellar. The house
was not named at first but showed as this in 1911 with William C. Houldsworth as residing there. Adam Stott
was a well-known resident here for 1928. For 1939 another Stott name arrived that of Mrs Helen, to keep it in
the family.

e ————

Holmsdale. Barnfield (Holmdale)

The second home along the newly formed Barnfield of 1904 it belonged to Sam Smith. This Dale was
a detached house with three living rooms, four bedrooms, cellars, and an ample garden. By 1928
Michael Benson had called the house Holmdale.

Homestead. 23 Barnfield
One of many named houses along this road this name shown in 1928. A detached building backing onto the Meadows, it had three
reception rooms, kitchen, scullery, four beds and a box room, bathroom sep. w ¢, and a cellar. No garage but plenty of room for
one. 1939 it was home for Ernest Maitland.
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Hopedene. 19 Barnfield Road

Once owned by George Bolton Stott (1858-1934) in 1911, this home had its own coach house
that has since been converted into a bungalow. This member of the Stott family was a Founder of
the Cottage Hospital and a tireless worker in the newly formed UUDC in the 1930's. A clash of
names had this house altered from Holmesdale it could have been Mrs. N. Stott for 1939 who
attended to this as resident for the period.

Heversham. Barnfield
Another home found for 1928 ten years or so after the road was established.

Id wal. Barnfield
A touch of Wales brought into Barnfield for 1908 as the road formed its pattern. William Burton brought his touch to it as well when
he moved in. Idwal is a valley near Snowdonia.

Inglewood. 14 Barnfield
This particular Inglewood was identified for 1928 with Mrs. Mary Crompton at home. Mary was still around for 1939.

Kingswood. 13 Barnfield
As Barnfield grew in 1908 as a cul-de-sac this was an early addition with Charles Albert Alker at home. Thomas Stokes became
king of the wood around 1938.

Lea side. 36 Barnfield
This Lea was traced for 1928 in street listings with Leonard Derbyshire inside; he was a draughtsman who lived there until after
1939.

Little Croft. 26 Barnfield
The croft was located in directories of 1928 among several name changes for Barnfield. A school master going by the name of
James Latimer carried out his profession from here till after 1939.

Lochaber. 14 Barnfield
This 1908 home is one of the few to show its name today among the many that kept changing over the years. It carried the same
address as Inglewood in 1939.

Lupin Lodge. 12 Barnfield
The Lodge was signified by this common but lovely flower in 1928. William Pearce sat admiring them way into 1939.

Luxmi. Barnfield
This home was established in 1911 it had as occupant Norman Selkirk.

Merseyside. 28 Barnfield
This is a 1928 calling for an established home on Barnfield. At this time a commercial traveller by the name of Arthur Tyldesley had
reason to belong. He remained with a later date showing 1939.

Nashdon. Barnfield
A 1919 home found named and to have arrived slightly later than most along here.

Newlands. 8 Barnfield

This home of ¢.1908 is showing that name for the present day. It is quite possible that this was
not its beginning name as Barnfield was notorious for re-calling homes differently. R. H. Dawson
a 1939 resident obviously did not care.

Newlyn. Barnfield
Found to be, in 1928. This name added to the long list along Barnfield with William Guy as homeowner.

Northwood. 5 Barnfield
By 1919 this name had slotted in between The Moorings and Woolengabba. Karl Baumann continued with the same name for
1928. The well appreciated Faulkner family resided here for quite some time.

Nundah. Barnfield

Smith Dawson with wife Eliza arrived here in 1908 to join the expanding Barnfield in its no thoroughfare way. The home in 1927
was called a bright semi overlooking the open country, a square hall entrance, three living rooms, and four bedrooms. The garden
was inclusive of paving. Nundah is in line with several places on Barnfield as it has Australian connections.

Oxford House. Barnfield
One of the many Barnfield homes with a name change, this calling was dated 1910 when William Heald had it then later it was G.
C. MacDonald living there until 1917.

Penpol. Barnfield

William Trevithick took possession of this house for 1908 along the newly developed road for the time. In that year the home
possessed two reception rooms, five bedrooms, a bath with separate w c, kitchen, scullery, larder, it had cellars and well stocked
gardens front and back.
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Roker. 11 Barnfield
For 1908 Barnfield was just being established and this home belonged to its beginning. The homeowner was James Frederick
Webb. Roker, as a semi, was mated to Kingswood. Miss Margaret Hargreaves claimed it for her own by 1938-39.

Rosemont. 22 Barnfield
1928 found this semidetached rose among the homes of Barnfield. It flowered with three bedrooms, two living rooms, bathroom and
kitchenette. A coal shed, tool shed, and garage completed the arrangement. 1939 homeowner was Sydney Rickard.

Strathallen. Barnfield

Barnfield grew very quickly in 1908 with this home adding to the numbers as Joseph Bracewell moved
in. It was partnered with Brooklyn to complete the semidetached building.

Teviotdale. Barnfield
The third of a line along the no thoroughfare of 1908 this one belonged to Frederick Thomas Dodd.

The Moorings. 7 Barnfield
" Ship shape for 1908 this home belonged in the hands of Herbert George Baggs. It showed as the
fourth house into the then cul-de-sac. An engineer called Edwin Rose went to work from here in
1939.

The Vron. 1 Barnfield
1908 saw the formation of the road which was a no through way this house began the many that F
became known by name here. It was shown as having Thomas Richard Roberts as one of the 2
earliest inhabitants.

The detached residence contained a good square hall with fireplace, two fine entertaining rooms,
cloak room, kitchen with Triplex range, pantry and the usual domestic offices. The bedrooms were
four and all on one floor, bath and w/c in one room. Electric lighting and an enclosed garden
finished its informative details. Vron is French for commune and Welsh for a hill. Frederick T.
Reece was here for 1939.

Wallaroo. Barnfield
An Australian sounding name came to Barnfield in 1910 the house was there earlier 1908 but this later year showed it being
named. Thomas Wilde was the homeowner for this year.

Woodseats. Barnfield
Home to an early settler of 1908 Barnfield as it began its life. John Frank Ashton took possession here.

Woolengabba. Barnfield
The second home to carry connotation to Australia in the beginning of Barnfield the first being Wallaroo. This one appeared in 1911
two years after the road began. Mrs. Lucy Mills was homemaker in this time frame.

Wynthorpe. Barnfield
Dated as 1906 this home fell under Westgate in actuality, although often referred to as Barnfield.

e Barra Drive. Davyhulme
22 homes create Barra which is close to Shetland Way. Barra is an island in the Hebrides.

e Barton Avenue. Urmston 1900
A block of twelve homes 6 for each side of the avenue and still the same today. During those starting days none was named. The
best date traced at this time for origins is 1898 with an estimate of it being pre-this period.

e Barton Moss.
A Hamlet swallowed up into Barton upon Irwell in 1894. The census of 1901 shows it involved a population of 234 and 45 houses.
This land is no longer regarded as having connection to the district.
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e Barton Road. (Known as Barton and Old Barton Road renamed as of 1965)

~~ The road began life as a part of Croft Bank and Crofts Bank Road by 1935 had a mixture of old and
new to its 45 homes and 1 flat. This road was "Publicly lighted" all the way from The Nags Head to
the St. Catharine Church in 1887. Development to this area has brought forward a section now
known as Old Barton Road. Some naming of homes is known from directories and real estate
sales of the 1800’s.

Only the schoolhouse is now shown on this old section of the road. The actual school stands
alongside the schoolhouse but closed and boarded up awaiting its future or demise. The road once
carried such places as the Bromyhurst Farm and the pub called the Basson and Fiddle. It was also host to the St. Catharine
Rectory along with several cottages. This road has been restricted in access from what is now known as Barton Boulevard to
Barton Bridge.

Bent Cottage. Barton Road

First believed to be unconnected with the usual thoughts of Bent Lanes, this home was close to Barton Old Road and the junction
of Redclyffe Road. It has been established that for those early years Bent Lane did go through to Barton Road. This cottage is
dated around 1840 or slightly earlier and is only shown on maps without detail. Its nearest neighbour was Rose Cottage in that era.
James Bent passed on here in 1865 followed by Joseph Bent in 1878 leaving the cottage and chattels up for auction. It presented
as a small holding with stable, coach house attached, an orchard and fishpond, were included.

Beech Rock. Barton Road

The last house at Rivers Lane, it housed a gentleman called Charles Ball in 1919. Totally enclosed
in woodland its origin is known as it appeared for tender in 1895 as premises for the caretaker at
the Manchester Corporation Sewerage Works. Charles was still there in 1938 now noted as being
the Manager of the Works.

Bentcliffe. Barton Road (The Retreat)
P ¢ This house sits across from the Nags Head Hotel when found there was not any information

y available, but its name has Celtic origins. It is shown in the census of 1841 and on O/S maps of 1845
as having a Smithy convenient for the hotel and its travelling guests. This detached residence
advertised stables with the house in a 1913 sales pitch and a name for that time would be Guest
William Phillips as resident. Found later was that the house had a hall with cloak room, four
bedrooms, dining and drawing rooms, three cellars, all conveniences, and a greenhouse. The stables
were now offered as a garage and there were 2,000 sq. yards of garden. A 1939 gent living here was
John Pugh Temperley.

Street directory entries did not follow this name for many years the only other home close to Brook Terrace around that period was
called The Retreat and found was that James Bent changed the name to Bentcliffe in 1892. Showing up in 1909 and again in 1919
with George Fell at home.

Bent Terrace. Barton Road

The closest point, to describe where this is located, would be at the Crofts Bank Bridge and
behind the Nags Head. The terrace of nine built ¢.1875 is standing to this day. Typical here
for 1882 were three bedrooms, bathroom, a parlour, kitchen, and scullery. A pumping station
was erected here during 1957 to eleviate drainage problems from the close by brook. Living
in No.6 for 1953 was Thomas Forsyth Justice of the Peace.

T, A

e Bromyhurst. Alphabetically included here as a portion of Baron Road.

The Hamlet of Bromyhurst sat alongside Dumplington, trapped between Davyhulme and the River Irwell. It was absorbed with the
other hamlets of the region into what would be Davyhulme and Trafford. Recorded dates revert to the 11™" Century for its history. It
comprised of 120 acres of woodlands and moor.

Bromyhurst Farm. Old Barton Road
The farm 1705 was situated on the banks of the River Irwell Higher Dumplington. Records show
it was there and occupied in 1909 by Samuel Mellor but eventually it went into the history books
o) €.1997. Built for the Thomas Harrison family of Darby it held 175 acres of land which were a part
~ . of the Trafford Estates. They remained as owners into 1782. The site was subjected to an
archaeological survey prior to it being flattened.

The stable and coach house unfortunately went with the farm in its demise. It had wonderful high
reaching doors that allowed coaches to pass, typical for its era. The 1930s had farmer James
Farnworth at work there, he passed on in 2008 aged 86. The barn was one of the last to be
removed; the survey indicated it was two storied seven bay. Originally called a threshing barn it had
been altered into a shippon. Remaining in the barn was a dove cote and stone keeler. (Wash tub)

The farm only retained some 50 acres at the time of closure.
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Bromyhurst House. Old Barton Road
F R, ( The house was south of the farm and dated as the same during the early 1700’s. Along with the
7% farm it was razed in 1996. The Bardsley family who owned the Corn Mill at Barton lived here in
1878.

b

Bromyhurst Vicarage. Old Barton Road

Sitting next to the farm it belonged to the nearby St. Catherine Church. The Rev. James
Barrow was a known resident. His daughter Margaret married John Farnworth of the
neighbouring Bromyhurst Farm. The building was used as a Karate Club during 1970-71.

Brook Cottage. Barton Road
: The cottage is referred to in 1938 as being a neighbour of Wilderspool. Harry Oaks was known to
be there into 1940.

Brook House. Barton Road (aka. Crofts Bank Farm)

This house has been traced to John Rogers for 1897 he owned 17 acres here, all was sold out after
he passed away. Found for 1911 was the well-known brick maker of Thomas Mosedale working and
living there. The family of Sanders took possession and the small house with its yard stands away
from the road this is still being utilised by the company. George Sanders is shown here for 1938 and
it could have been slightly earlier 1930 as Herbert Sanders was farming in this area at the time.

A small amount regarding the history of this house and its yard is
known but sketchy. Mosedale certainly manufactured hand cut

' ' bricks at the rear. Herbert (Harry) and George Sanders operated a
haulage company from here. The main line of business was Plant Hire, but they were contracted to
transport ash and general waste to the dumps of Broadway and Kingsway now converted into
parklands. Broadway Park incorporates the majority of the brickworks land.

Brook Terrace. Barton Road

The terrace of 1881 sits prior Broadway and on Barton Road and is numbered 1-6. The corner
house at number 1 has been converted into a shop since 1933. The shop was offered earlier
as having three bedrooms, kitchen, two living rooms, bathroom, washroom, and cellars. The
first recorded shop found so far was that of Frank Stanley Lambourne. The business was
Lambourne. F. S. & Co offering wireless supplies during the days of 1938.

Broom Cottage. Barton Road

This cottage was not actually on Barton Road being placed way out into the fields of this area. The nearest markers would be
Wilderspool and Bent Cottage as it sat in a direct line between the two. 1864 is a date known being advertised for sale with, 6
bedrooms, a dressing room, 2 entertaining rooms, kitchen and scullery that included a pantry. Its cellars had one confined to wine.
Outside a stable and coach house completed the package.

Croft Cottage.
Found to placed north of the Crofts Bank Bridge and prior to Rivers Lane.

Chestnut Cottages. Barton Road
There were two nutty cottages tracked down for here in 1939. They gave the appearance of being a part of the Crofts Hall Farm.
The first was occupied by Peter Moss a labourer, with the second as Charles Davies who was a horse teamsman.

Croft Bank Farm.
Believed to be one step away from the Croft Hall Farm. Herbert Sanders was known to be farming there into 1940. This could
connect with Brook House and the Sanders family there as George Sanders was married in 1930 giving this as his address.

Croft Hall Farm. Barton Road

Close to the Crofts Bank House by listing address. Details are uncertain but it was north-west of
the Brook Terrace. A brick building of two stories, the only feature was a small porch to the front
doorway. The farmer in 1894-1901 was Samuel Faulkner. Mary Royle rose to the occasion for
1919; she was aided by Ann Farnworth who was also a farmer of the time. Added to this her help
came in 1928 from Herbert Saunders. Farmer John Royal turned as in charge for 1939.

Garage. Barton Road

A garage found in 1928 carried no particular naming it passed only as Barton Road Garage. Sited between Wilderspool Farm and
House it was run by Charles J. Brown. For 1938 Parker Robinson was in charge and it was to be addressed as Wilderspool
Cottage.
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Green Gates. Barton Road

A semidetached house addressed as being on the high road from Davyhulme to Crofts Bank. (Better known today as Barton Road)
In 1878 this was home to Edward Ardern and for 1882 a Mr. Pike and Mr. Samuel Clayton lived there with the stables, coach
house, and gardens. For 1906 it changed to be a cottage decorated and finished in fine oak making it to be perhaps a cottage in
the grounds of the main home.

Lilac Cottage. Barton Road

The cottage sat near to the Wilderspool Farm with William Latham looking after the place. It could be tracked down as sitting
between the Croft Cottages and the Wilderspool Cottages. Described as detached with an orchard and three fields it sold for £350
in 1894. These were sold separately, the orchard raised £150 and the fields £1590. The MSC Co. who owned the cottage
demolished it as un-inhabitable during 1936.

Moss Farm.
This farm was to be found after the terrace of Bent, almost at Kingsway. To be correct it was on Moss Lane with Seymour Bailey
reaping the profits. (See entry under Moss Lane)

Primrose Terrace. Barton Road

An entry had to be made at the demise for this old ¢.1905 block. It was swallowed up by the latest Peel
Holdings development in the area. Its last tenants held out there for as long as they could, but it was
under a demolition order of 2009. This work was completed in 2011 leaving the terrace as no more. At
this time Rose Bank that sat next door was also demolished. There were homes for nine families here
with the cellar of No.1 housing a boiler system for the block. Many early residents show as being steel
workers and it has been suggested there was a link to Taylor Bros. in Trafford Park for original

Rose Bank. Barton Road (West side)

A semidetached sitting between Croft Farm and the Rose Cottage it was the abode of the Lambert
and Jones families in 1898. Newer names for 1938-39 were Farnworth and Euston. As this sat
next door to Primrose Terrace which was demolished with the terrace by Peel Holdings for future
development of the area during 2011. A document of 1881 stated Rose Bank’s neighbour was
called Alsbach House; this has never been found or traced for further confirmation.

Rose Cottage. Barton Road

The cottage was a mile beyond the Nags Head Hotel towards Barton. In 1867 it was posted for rent and described as having 3
large rooms below and 4 above, a wash house and gardens came before mentioning the stable and coach house. John A.
Worthington was living here in 1898.

Rudgyard’s Farm. Barton Road

Once sitting directly behind the Nags Head Hotel this dairy farm is long gone. The original
house was extended over time and the outbuildings were as large as the farm itself. Thomas
Rudgyard, the farmer, lived in the Crofts Cottage which was next to the terrace of Bent.
Mapping shows this as Moss Farm where the farmers name has taken place.

St. Catherine. C of E Church Barton Road.
The 17" century maps show this church well established (1843-1973) alongside its neighbour of The
All Saints Church. Both fell under the districts of Bromyhurst and Dumplington before it became Barton
upon Irwell. Funding from Sir Thomas de Trafford ensured that Lady
Laura Ann de Trafford could lay the foundation stone in 1842. The
church had a peal of bells which were scrapped ¢.1960. The usual
story of dry rot brought about its demise in 1972 however the
graveyard still exists. Marshall Stevens can be found resting in
peace there. An unusual feature for the church was a 100ft
octagonal spire. A name for 1938-39 was the Reverend Harold
Pierce who lived at the vicarage known as Bromyhurst Vicarage.

War Memorial. St. Catharine Barton

i : 1 , . 2= The memorial here was designed as an indoor tribute. It has been exposed to the elements for many
{' 2 @ years now eroding into obliteration. The stone was relocated when the church was demolished. A
group have been trying to preserve the engraved names and have some form of shelter installed to

~ ¢ cover the remaining stonework. A search was been initiated to find the responsible ownership and to
- | engage the War Heritage Society for some assistance. This has not gone well, and the soft
sandstone has now been obliterated of all reading matter.

=~

St. Catherine Church School. Old Barton Road

= > This small cottage was still utilised as a Church of England school

ﬂ circa 1963. It was placed near to the swing bridge on the Old

i Barton Road. Records show a school was in existence well before
this, actually the year of 1881 shows the Rev. Thomas Douglas
Harland being appointed to the school at that time. It was usual for
the head to live in the cottage adjoining which carried a date of
1846 over its front door. The Mistress around 1939 was Maude
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The school and house are a part of the buildings Peel Holdings were to protect. This under an agreement with the various Councils
of Eccles, Davyhulme and the MSC. They have all failed to comply, included here too, is the Barton Conservation Area (1975)
which has no power to prevent its loss. This particular building was auctioned off in 2009 with the understanding ‘it needs some
attention” for £168,000 to an unknown purchaser. There is an effort to refurbish the school and house buildings and it has been in
progress for several years.

The Retreat. Barton Road

As a Retreat it was a calling for a home here that was to become Bentcliffe this occurred 1892. The
only other detail was that here were stables, a coach house, and gardens with a hothouse. It was
noted as detached. James Bent knew this calling living there during 1897; he passed away here in
1901. James was Britain’s longest serving policeman. This building was later confirmed as Willow
Bank for a follow up name.

The Old Basson & Fiddle Pub. Old Barton Road

Bromyhurst was home to this pub between the St. Catherine Church and the farm. Dated as of
€.1840, or earlier, it survived into 1887. Mr. and Mrs. Lord were running the inn during 1847. Sitting
on the banks of the River Irwell its removal came with the canal construction. The name of Basson
was probably an old English derivation of bassoon or a simple spelling error. Built as an ordinary
cottage it followed the practice of conversion into an ale house.

West View. Barton Road

The description for this address showed little, only a thought that it was at a point where Barton changed to Redclyffe. They were
numbered as 1-2 with Esther Ann Taylor in No.1 and Elizabeth Dickinson in No.2.

Wilderspool House. Barton

Shown on maps of 1782, it was owned by a Mr. Rogerson, with the next family name as Spafford 1861-1898. (Noted as being in
the cottage later) As a house it survived a number of years after the M62 motorway came in this area. For 1887 is was to be let at
this time and showed six bedrooms, two sitting rooms and two kitchens, scullery, attics, all cellared under, coach house with
stables, paddock with large gardens. During the years of 1930 to 1940 Charles Spafford and family appears to have lived in one or
the other Wilderspool abode. A last name was Farnworth, a brother to the family at Bromyhurst.

Wilderspool. Barton Road Crofts Bank

With so many named buildings as Wilderspool this one carried nothing other than the one word. The street directory stated it clearly
separate from all the others carrying the various names of this old establishment placing it next to the cottage. Mrs. Caroline
Spafford played house here in 1901. Research shows many people recorded as living in one or other of the callings. Jane
Hodgkinson was married from here in 1849 to Johan Benson.

Wilderspool Cottage and Hawthorne Cottage. Barton Road Crofts Bank

This portion of Crofts Bank Road became Barton Road. Spread around this acreage were the various buildings listed under
Wilderspool. The cottages were one of these and for 1871 in residence was Joseph Jackson who raised pigs and poultry. 1894 the
home maker was William Barlow followed by John Buckley 1898 and Robert O. Mcllrick during 1901. Found later was that there
were at least two cottages here following on from Lilac Cottage. The second carried the name of Hawthorne being under this calling
during 1938 and on. For that year, the name R. Pownall came up with Parker Robinson as being in Wilderspool Cottage.

Wilderspool Hall and Farm. Barton Road Crofts Bank
The farm was way off Crofts Bank Road, but it was the closest address registered. The house recorded in 1781 was centrally
between the Nags Head and Barton Bridge. Before any of the changes in this area it was all Wilderspool Woods. It was a

. IR gentleman’s residence at the outset and recorded with Ashton Burgess there in 1838-1858.

This was to become a farm later in its life. Mrs. Jane Garner had the honour of farming there for
1938-39 after Job and Fredrick Garner in 1929. The Hall was demolished in 1963 and the lands
became part of the farm. The farm, which was south of the hall, had Peter Warburton there in
1894-1898. The farm followed being razed in 1967-8 and is home today for the Travel Inn. The
final buildings fell by 1970 as Wimpey had development approved, it was to originally be called
the Moss Lane Estate.

Willow Bank. Barton Road

There was little information available for this home until 1946 when it came up for auction. It has been established that this was an
extension to Bentcliffe and once called the Retreat. The sale it indicated two bedrooms, box room, hall, lounge and dining rooms,
kitchenette with back to back range, bath and w/c, below carried wash, coal, and keeping cellars. It has been found that the 1938-
39 period was occupied by a physician and surgeon named as Eric Hanson Evison. M.R.C.S. L.R.C.P.
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Barton

Barton upon Irwell.

This civil parish was known as Lancashire Ancient County until 1894. It then became Barton under what was known as the Poor
Law Union. In 1930 as a registered sub-district it lasted until 1933 when once more it changed hands. Barton became a part of
Eccles and subsequently Salford. (Barton upon Irwell Flixton Office See Flixton Council) St Catherines Church fell as a portion of
this Eccles/ Salford arrangement.

Barton Aerodrome.
For interest only due to its proximity.

In 1987 the control tower at this airport was listed as a $
heritage structure Grade 2. Proposed in 1928 and built only .-
in 1937 its rarity arrives from it being the first Municipal
Airport in the world. The airport opened in 1930. Peel
Holdings are now the administrators of the field and as of

2007 it has been re-named as the City Airport Manchester.

As a part of the inaugural opening the Kings Cup Air race was held at Barton July 1930. The show attracted 30,000 spectators and
it was won by a Lancashire Club member called Winifred Brown in an Avro Avian Biplane. A further note affecting Urmston was that
Ringway only opened in 1938 replacing Barton as the point of air entry.

Its Heritage detail is as follows: The air traffic control tower is brick with reinforced concrete roofing. A three-stage octagonal tower
rises from a single-story podium with radiating wings at its four corners. The podium carries a coped parapet above a soldier course
and various windows with glazing bars. Lastly a glazed upper stage has a concrete balcony with railings. Access is via a reinforced
concrete dogleg stair.

Barton. Areas of interest

Because of its nearness to the River Irwell, and later the Ship Canal, there were two places of
interest there. First was a Stone Quarry and this was accompanied by a Corn Mill called J. G.
Bardsley Co. which was removed in 1888. Both were to be found within close proximity to the
Bridge and the Bridgewater Canal. The Irwell had a lock and weir at this point, one of many along
the old waterway. The corn mill is recorded to exist in 1782.

Although Barton Dock Road is slightly out of the area of concern for this A-Z it was still in contention having an address as for the
most part it was regarded as Urmston. Arriving at the Dock Road from Dumplington Circle during 1939 to the left
was a piece of history worth noting. Built in much secrecy a test establishment
was erected for the development of Jet Turbine engines. An exchange between
the Admiralty and Metro-Vickers brought about something called the B10 an
experimental non-flight engine. It was modified to suit a Lancaster Bomber being
mounted on the tail for testing purposes.

The experiments continued through to 1943 when the contracts were handed over to Armstrong Siddley so that Metro’s could re-
establish themselves in the Industrial and Marine turbine markets. The “Barton Test” was known to be in existence up until its
closure and removal in 1993 and one wonders how many know of the importance this Urmston site was in the development of the
modern Jet Engines development. Stories tell of broken turbine blades being embedded 4” into railway sleepers which had been
installed to protect the building after some of the experimental engines exploded. As the site was alone in the fields, it was
specifically designed to avoid harm to the public.

The Metro’s Beryl engine, a design to evolve from this, was used by Donald Campbell in 1955 for his Bluebird K7. The world record
was broken without reaching full power. (202.32 KPH) He later went on to break this water speed in 1964 (276.33 KPH) but to show
the difference for today the record stands at 317.58 KPH as of 1978.

Barton Bridge.

The story here is that this crossing was attained by a boat ¢.1586. Only towards 1670 did the first
bridge appear. There are records of stonework repairs in 1746. Before the swing bridge came into
being it was confirmed as a stone structure crossing the River Irwell, in fact there have been
several bridges built in the beginning days. Shipping was limited in size by this and only barges
called ‘Flats’ were able to pass below carrying their cotton and coal cargo. The original road bridge
is behind the agueduct on this photograph.

Built in ¢.1761 it was the original route for shipping over the River Irwell.
Brindleys was a solid stone, arched structure that carried water. The aqueduct
got its name from James Brindley 1716-1772 who was the engineer hired to
complete the canal. The Barton swing bridge and aqueduct complex replaced
it. There are remains of the stone aqueduct preserved on the Eccles side of the
canal marked by a plaque stone.

James Brindley
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Some testament to this construction has been preserved on the Eccles side of the
canal. A portion of the stonework remains including a dated stone W R B 1824. The
year indicated does not match actual construction it informed of William Rigby
Bradshaw who was assisting in management at that time. This would have been

* added during further work later. Included here are several builder's marks for varied
i use in levelling and alignment as they were to be paid according to this form of

| identification. The dismantling of the stone bridges came in 1891.

Barton Bridge Complex.

By 1885 the Bridgewater became the property of the Manchester Ship Canal Corp. At this time there was a need for a new bridge,
_ and it was completed in 1893. A swinging aqueduct replaced the stone Brindley Bridge. MSC

Corp is a subsidiary of Peel Holdings as of 2004. However, the canal at this point, and bridge are

in a combined trust and not owned by Peel.

In 1976 this area of 14 acres was designated as “in trust” it includes the All Saints Church and
grave sites along with several cottage homes. This was not a Heritage recognition, but a general
agreement made by all parties involved. The Heritage award only came in 1987.

The Heritage entry for this engineering feat states: Barton Bridge, Aqueduct, and Control Tower was amended to read as in
Davyhulme with part in Eccles. The tower is manufactured from wrought iron and brick. Both the bridge and aqueduct revolve on a
central axis to allow the passage of ships. The aqueduct takes the form of a boxed lattice girder .

containing an upper member and the channel remains full of water when turning. At the bottom the
road bridge has bow-string lattice girders either side to the roadway. The 2 x 2 four story control
tower with pyramidal roofing has an external staircase. A red plague award was introduced in 2018
by the Transport Trust honouring the structure.

When first opened operations were controlled on site by a Bridge Master. A house was located near
the complex to accomodate this position. It stands today 2016 but boarded up and left as derelict.
Not offically as his home as the cottages were a part of Chapel Place.

Barton Bridge. (Swing)

Only recognised as important historically in 1987 when it was listed Grade 2*, the
bridge, aqueduct, and control tower were added to our Heritage. In 1893 Sir

| Leader Williams was the engineer and the fabricator was A. Handyside and Co.
Statistics for the road bridge include its weight of 800 tons it is 195ft long and is
25ft wide. On a hot day the 64-roller hydraulic system often stopped working due
to expansion and the local fire department would hose it down to reduce the

* ' temperature. The aqueduct is slightly longer at 235ft and the structure weighs
1,450 tons. A re-construction of the bridge complex was proposed in 1959
scheduled to be completed from 1962 until 1966.

Sir Leader Williams

Barton Bridge a Hansard (Lords) comment.

During a debate regarding the proposed erection of the High-Level Bridge this comment is recorded in the official Hansard report of
1960. “The Manchester Ship Canal act of 1885 specifically states that the company should not close the bridge for more than ten
minutes at each time. As it takes eight minutes to swing the bridge this act leads to a lot of misunderstanding.” The company later
explained it takes a minimum of 22 minutes to complete the whole operation.

Barton High Level Bridge.

W After the first discussions held in 1928 the alternate proposals were rejected. One suggestion was a
tunnel this was turned down due to the extra cost of £720,000 over building a bridge. The second
idea was to convert the exisiting Irlam railway bridge but this didn’t convince anyone that it would be
cheaper than a new one or eleviate the congestion being too far away from the swing bridge it was
to replace. This bridge section of the highway was first numbered as the M62.
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During the construction of this bridge over the ship canal disaster struck. It was 1959 and some
steel girders on the structure fell killing four workers. This was the first of two major accidents
that occurred during its erection, the second causing two further fatalities. The bridge was
eventually completed in 1960 and open to traffic with the motorway itself. It was officially
opened by Sir Arthur Smith in March of 1961. It has been estimated that several thousand
people walked the bridge to view this engineering feat prior to the opening to general traffic.
The year of 2011 was the 50" year of operation.

The bridge is 2,425 ft. long and has a gradient of 1 in 25 and it took 5,000 tons of precast steel. Reaching 100 ft. above the canal it
originally had two 24 ft. wide lanes in each direction. Not being designed to carry as much traffic as is required in modern times
modification came in 1978 and again in 1990 adding one lane to each side of the existing structure.

Barton Hospital. Ship Canal orientated.

Due to the number of accidents and incidents occurring during the construction of the canal the
Ship Canal Company had a hospital built. As the construction progressed the hospital provided
aid as required.

Barton Power Station. Barton upon Irwell

A site for the statlon was proposed in 1914 and built during 1920-1923, Lord Derby officiating, its
: twin stacks were added in 1933, a feature for many years; it was

closed in 1973 and finally demolished in 1979.

The station was powered by turbines made at Metropolitan-
Vickers and was coal fired. Prior to its more common name of
Barton Power it was also called The Electricity Works. The B&Q
- = now takes the space once occupied by this striking skyline

[ e L _‘ structure. The building was the first to carry camouflage in 1941.

The original multi-stacks

Bridgewater. Canal
As early as 1675 there was a bridge over the River Irwell called Brindley’s Stone Bridge. The 3" Duke of
Bridgewater, Francis Egerton, decided that it was possible to dig a canal that could carry barges across the
Irwell from Leigh to Runcorn. This was in 1761 but for that year it only went as far as Stretford; later the canal
was open and finally completed to its full length in 1776. During one of the diggings in 1772 a gold Bulla was
found. This was a Roman amulet usually worn around the neck.

Francis Egerton 1736-1803

Gornsey Cottage. Barton
It is believed that this cottage was the beginnings of Mossfield House. In 1840 it was the nearest home to the lodge and foot bridge
over the Bridgwater Canal at a point around a half mile from the Barton Bridge itself. The bridge, which did not appear on later
maps of 1890, was called Turn Bridge.

Mossfield House. Barton
Built on the site of Gornsey Cottage by the side of the Bridgewater canal, its frontage looked out at the passing ships and barges.

e Bedford Road. Davyhulme
Leading to Hayswater Circle from Davyhulme Road1935 is advised as its beginning, there are approximately 26 homes there.
Bedford is a name from the Shire.

e Beech Avenue. Off Church Road Urmston
The west terrace was made up of 9 units while the east had 11. The buildings numbered as 2-22
which included one shop were for sale in 1897. For 2011 it is now comprised of 28 properties with
only the west terrace surviving from the past. The best date found for this no thoroughfare has its
beginnings as 1896.

2 Beech Avenue was recorded as a grocery business in 1953. Ken Wilson suggested his shop
here, but it has not been established as to where it stood. A 1923 Electrical shop was also found
again without location.

ol )

Hargreaves House. 21 Beech Avenue

Recorded is that this abode was a residence of 1898, at home W. H. Hargreaves. Further
detail has not been forthcoming. It has not carried any weight for proof as Beech back then
was terraced only and may be misleading information.
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e Beech Avenue. Off Brook Road
A single house called The Winnats made up this road off Brook in 1911. Its name was changed to Fern Avenue in 1933 and there
are a handful more homes today. 1928 the addition was Raygill making the avenue with two named homes.

The Winnats. Beech Avenue (Now Fern)
This was the only named house in the avenue which was first entered in street indexes for 1910 and
on. Its 1911 keeper was an Estate Agent called John Best Wilkinson.

Raygill Beech Avenue (Now Fern)
This possibly belonged to a Ray and Gill when it was built but, in 1928, it was home to Mrs. Elizabeth Hudson and off Brook Road.

e Beechfield Avenue. Flixton (Beachfield in some street directories)
The avenue is estimated to have been built in 1925 with 15 homes. The Urmston Branch of the Spastic Society (Now as Scope)
operated from 1 Beechfield during the late 1950s probably in a secretarial position.

1928 for here was Springfield, Ventnor, Carnalea, Norcott, Ebor, St. Fillans, Meole Brace, Glenholme, and Birch Bungalow.

Birch Bungalow. Beachfield Avenue
It must have been lonely for David Englehard he was the only 1928 resident on his side of the avenue.

Carnalea. Beachfield Avenue
George Hill made this his own in 1928.

Ebor. Beachfield Avenue
1928 showed this as the house where salesman Percy Harrison was living.

Glenholme. Beachfield Avenue
The glen became holme to a commercial traveller in 1928 named as Leonard Clarke.

Meole Brace. Beachfield Avenue
This brace was held by Ernest Lear during 1928.

Norcott. Beachfield Avenue.
This was the 1928 home for Reginald Lishman who was a draughtsman by trade.

Springfield. Beachfield Avenue
In 1928 this abode was springing through the fields just off Craig Avenue. Boot making was the trade for its occupant, Fred
Sixsmith.

St. Fillans. Beachfield Avenue
The Saint had a chemist called Henry Davis in attendance during 1928. St. Fillans is a village located in Scotland.

Ventnor. Beachfield Avenue
A 1928 structure for Flixton close to Craig Avenue, Ventnor was home to Daniel Griffiths whose hands bound books.

e Beechwood Avenue. Flixton
The avenue has only 9 houses with no further detail other than it is off Lawrence Road.

e Belgrave Avenue. Flixton
There are 20 homes on the avenue which dates from 1933. Belgrave arrives from the Norman Conquest and it has a meaning of
‘Beautiful Grove’. An unnamed home at No.8 offered large detail when placed on auction. There was a hall with cloak room, dining
room, and lounge, kitchen with bungalow range, scullery, pantry, three beds, bathroom, and toilet. The garage was complete with
conservatory over. Alongside the house was an asbestos workshop set in large gardens.

e Benbecula Way. Davyhulme
1969 is its age given and there are 68 known properties. Benbecula is an island in the Outer Hebrides.

e Bendemeer. Davyhulme (Bendimeer for its beginnings)
The 4 houses here are without detail c.1930-1935. An old map showed them to be on Old Crofts Bank, this is now confirmed and
there is now a road/estate along here called by that name. This strange word has connection to Australia. After much searching it
has been found that this small estate took home where the house of Bendemeer sat in the 1900’s. This was the last home in 1911
before Davyhulme Road. It belonged to the Cookson family who were also connected to Woodlands, their neighbour of the time. A
well renowned owner was Dr Wolstenholme for a short while.

e Bents Avenue. Flixton
The 13 homes here, apart from the terrace, are relatively new 2005 and sit at the end of
Bromley. Bents was around for many years before this as can be seen by the original
architecture. Victoria Avenue ¢.1900 was shown as taking first call here for the area and only
Lonsdale carried a naming.
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e Bent Lanes.

Before it was known as a road it was a Hamlet and covered the area surrounding what is now Bent
Lanes. Several stories abound as to its naming. Some say is was so called after Edward Bent 1578
who left the lands to his son John Bent. He had a connection to the Wesleyan Church in the area.
Others offer the fact it comprised of lanes that were bent. As a last offering, in old English, Bent
means the place where the rushes grow. None other than Bent family has any source for
confirmation. One factor is that in 1782 the area of the John Bent tenement was called Bent Lanes.
In 1838 a pair of cottages was offered with loom shops and orchards. They sat on land called Little
Bent and Bent Croft and there was an acre of land to make it all inclusive.

Notes re. The lanes.

Some notes of interest are that the Lanes only received Electricity in May 1955. They got this after
agreeing to spend £25 per year in usage over five years. In a development of 1957, a scheme to
build "Over spill" houses here was rejected by the Town and Country Planning Association sighting i
the atmospheric pollution from Davyhulmes sewerage plant and the alternate site of the Irlam Ferry !
area due to the Irlam Power Station pollution. In an effort to preserve a little of the lane’s past, a
pathway now exists where the early part left Davyhulme Road and joins at Woodhouse. The lanes
in their original form and dated 1782 traversed through to Barton Road connecting to Bromyhurst
and Dumplington Lane.

e Bent Lanes. Davyhulme 1900
Brookfield, Bent Lanes House, and Highfield View started the lane names preceding numbers 1-21 which ended at No. 23 Ivy
Cottage. Homes here carry dates from the early 1800's. The Stickens Farm, Woodbine Cottage, Ye Old Farm, and Ash Cottage
made up the remainder of the lane. Two acres of land came up for sale in 1963 to expand housing north of Redbourne Drive. There
are 130 registered homes now. A foot bridge is shown on O/S maps, as far back as 1885 was located north of the remaining path
that is available today at Woodhouse Road. Naturally it crossed the Bent Brook at this point before it was removed in 1905. From
details provided during the closure it was a foot bridge only.

Ash Cottage. Bent Lanes

The cottage was early in its calling in 1878 it passed under this name. Mrs. Braham left this world in that year recording the name of
Ash as her last abode. In 1898 this belonged to John Rogers, an engineer, for its next noted appearance as it sat being the last
building after Ye Old Farm. Another name found was that of Mollie Wilcox who lived there in 1914.

Beech Cottage. 23 Bent Lanes

The cottage remained unnamed for the 1901 street directory but for this fact, it was there. Mrs. Lydia
Mears was offering it in 1898 complete with an orchard and a portion of land across the road. The
deal amounted to three acres in all. It was stated that Beech was actually a house and there was a
cottage at the rear. The cottage/house was a direct neighbour to the Stickens Farm. 1782 maps
indicate several cottage style homes at this point. Known dates for this cottage and its history are
1604 with a suggestion of 1550 for origin. As of 2019 it is to be redeveloped for new housing.

Beech House. Bent Lanes Path

The old preserved lane has only this house left to show for the past. Its architecture is not of the
1800’s that were around for the Lanes start in life. The present pathway is void of any other
structures to remind one of its histories.

Bent Brook.
The stream runs from Woodhouse and through Bent Lanes to the Irwell River. A survey map dated c.1856
indicates this begins in Stretford under the name of Longford Brook. It meanders along in a rough parallel to
Barton Road showing itself to distinctly arrive at Kingsway Park. It continues on to the Crofts Bank culvert
M‘ " bridge, through Broadway until it becomes the Bent Lanes Brook.

Work began on the bridge there in 1959, Maunders created a diversion of
the brook to allow further road changes. The piping the culvert for this brook
continued in 1962 with the final laying 1965 Barton Road to Conway.

Some detail indicated in the Ship Canal archives gives a termination point

. for the Bent Brook as being at Latchford in Cheshire. The photograph taken
in 1969 showed the aftereffects that followed the Manchester Courage accident at Irlam Locks.
The stream exposed its erosion prevention measures usually hidden under the waters.

Bent Lane House. Davyhulme (Unknown)

This house was found for 1873 and to be on the lane but unknown as to which it was from the several there. A ‘To Let’ sign in 1874
had four bedrooms and two living rooms, two kitchens, and cellars, on show was a good garden that included fruit trees. There was
a stable as an added feature and a cottage alongside could be included if it was required. A site for this house has been pinpointed
to sit between Brookfield and Highfield View towards Davyhulme Road. John Wardle registered it as his in 1898.
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Brookfield. Bent Lanes

An unknown quantity other than it had a very early beginning of the 1800's. The two in residence
here for 1898 were George Bennett who was one householder and a Miss. Martha Rogers in the
other. The house name was dropped after 1903 from all records. Known is that at one time it was
deeply into poultry and goat farming. The location was towards the Davyhulme Roadside.

Days Farm.
The farm had scant information about its past other than it was close to the Hulme Ferry. The mentioning of it being along the path
called Brickhill meant it was also close to the Union Inn and cottages. Information shows it once stood around Davylands and old
Bent Lanes, slightly further north than hints gave. This was found to be Yew Tree Farm under a farmer calling of Day. They record
dates of 1938 to the present with Dorothy retired there.

Foot Stick. Davyhulme

The term ‘foot stick’ referred to a narrow tree trunk or pole used as a crossing over a stream. It is a rare term for today’s mapping
but could be found on ordnance survey maps of yesteryear. One such placing occurred in Davyhulme crossing what was then the
culvert or stream called Bent Brook. The indication of this is shown in an 1845 map and it could be found roughly at the junction of
Broadway and Woodhouse Road. In later years this was to be converted into a foot bridge.

Guys Poultry Farm. 29 Bent Lanes

As neighbour to the Stickens Farm the building had been in existence since 1717. It was home to
Richard and Elizabeth Guy who married in 1902 they ran the farm and a grocery shop from the
premises around 1930. This was a small home offering three bedrooms, living room, kitchen, and
bath. There were to be included a garage and storeroom as outbuildings. The farm carried a date
stone that was initialled as D over IAW. This plot was owned by the MSC.

Highfield View. Bent Lanes
This particular View did not carry an address other than its name for 1898. Living there for 1901 were Thomas Pearson and William
McCarthy at the Davyhulme Road end with Brookfield and Bent House. 1889 is the earliest date known for the View at this time.

Irwell Nursery. Bent Lanes1903 and again in 1905 the nursery was available to the public at auction. The two acres included two
cottages, greenhouses, cart, and potting sheds. The business was being run by a Mr. Smith, but all searches have been unable to
locate the owner or calling of Irwell in any records other than the auction.

lvy Cottage. Bent Lanes

Ilvy was the last-named home along the Lane before Stickens Farm in 1898. The cottage was
numbered as 23 with John Tyson and John Brooks making it their home. It is possible the cottage
exists, now divided into a semi its location is to be confirmed and verified.

Stickings Farm. Bent Lanes (Stickens Farm)

This old establishment is believed to have been built around 1723. In 1898 the farm was in the hands
of William Rogers followed by Sarah Rogers in 1909. This farm probably originated as Stickings as it
was in the vicinity of the Stickings Cut and Locks prior to the Ship canal. It was sold by auction in 1938
by resident Mr. Samuel Bingham. There is a date stone R. S & A, at this time it assumed to be Rogers,
S and A, added it gave the date of 1793. Eventual ownership fell to the Sanders family who are still in
possession. Harry Sanders bred greyhounds at this location which was complete with a set of kennels.

Stickings, the cut and bridge. Davyhulme (Stickens)

A small residential area located around the Farm and Cut of the same name. The name carried several
spellings with Stiggins the most common for 1880. The Hamlet of Stickings was occupied by several
families for the time. Names like: Bent, Partington, Brooks, Rogers, Hulme, Taylor, Mathews, Johnson,
Booth, and Royle, all holding homes in the area.

To avoid several meandering turns in the River Irwell this cut was dug c.1718. It allowed shipping, before
the MSC, access to a more direct route passed what was then called in dialect, Stiggins Island. Tonnage
was restricted to the size of the locks and a maximum of 50 tons was imposed in 1720.

A bridge was in existence for foot traffic across to the island. By 1890
the Island was almost gone when the diverted Irwell changed as the
new canal construction reached this point.

The farmers here manufactured this bridge for transporting cattle
across the Irwell.

Turn Bridge
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The Feathers. Bent Lanes

This was the home of Ensign Ewart but at this time its siting has not been pin pointed. By 1782 map
indication it was close to the existing Beech Cottage. Certain is that this is no more. A brass name
plate that once adorned the cottage was preserved by the Sanders of Stickens Farm, a close
neighbour.

The Old Poultry Farm. Bent Lanes
Mr. T. E. Wallis was the owner operator of the farm in 1920 numbered as 29 this carried the name of Ye Old Farm at other times.

Whiteville Kennels. Bent Lanes

The kennels were highly regarded in the world of Alsatians (German Shephard) approximate dates for this
would be 1940-1974 the proprietor being Mrs. E. M. Pike. Confirmed names are Ernie and Edith Pike with
the naming of Whitegate Kennels as an alternate.

Woodbine Cottage. Bent Lanes
Mrs. Fogg (Fogg Farm connection) lived here in 1898; the cottage was listed as being next door to Ye Old Farm.

Ye Old Farm. 29 Bent Lanes

Many occupants were attributed to this farm, too many names to list from the 1900’s. It has been found as a small holding that
carried a date of 1717. Its last calling was that of a Poultry Farm held by Guy’s. 1898 showed John Robertson in residence with a
change by 1911 to Thomas Molyneux as the farmer. The quick turnover of famers suggested it was not a viable business with the
cottage returning to a residence for the final days.

Many cottages are offered as associated to the farm or at least neighbours; they remain as without detail other than when a located
reference is presented.

e Berwick Avenue. Urmston
1995 was the basis for these 23 dwellings on the avenue. Its name origins vary from Scottish to Norse, the latter as ‘Corn farm’.

e Beverley Avenue. Davyhulme
Off Canterbury Road this avenue is home to 22 families. As a female name it stands for ‘Beaver Stream’.

e Bexley Close. Davyhulme
Adjoining Amersham Close, Bexley has 22 homes of its own. Bexley was an old London Borough.

e Bingley Drive. Davyhulme
This small section is made up from 18 units called home to its families there. Bingley is a place name from the West Riding of
Yorkshire.

e Birch Grove and Birch Avenue. Carrington Road

Located close to the Flixton Rectory but built on the opposite side of Carrington Road. In the

1890’s this terraced housing was well established alongside its closest neighbour of Glebe

Farm. It was at this site that a floodgate existed coupled to a sluice gate for control of the

. Mersey in 1848. The Grove housed six families whereas the Avenue only four. 1927 showed 35
dwellings and two shops covering Birch and Morris. To bring it up to date this is now totally

rebuilt as Morris Grove ¢.1985.

Adam Stott and his wife Helen had a daughter Beatrice addressed here in 1889. Although without
any further information the connection to the Grove and Avenue would seem obvious. Mile Road
Chippy could be found here at the Terminus Birch Place this tiny fish and chips outlet was a familiar
sight of the 1940’s in the area and called the Chip Pan. The shop was actually a converted home
extracted from the last terrace of Birch Grove on Carrington Road. Frequented by the bikers of the
time ¢.1950 because of its close proximity to the Mile Road where it was used for racing and general
showing off. The owners for the period of 1930-1955 were the Wilkinson’s followed by Charlie and
Joe Giriffiths. The last owners were the Brady sisters who stayed until it closed c.1965.

e Bishop Road. Flixton Near to Woodsend Park there are 39 abodes.

e Blair Avenue. Flixton
The housing is numbered 1-23 along this avenue. The housing here was offered as tender by
council in 1960 it involved the building of 28 aged persons bungalows. The Gaelic tongue has this
as ‘a field clear of wood'.
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e Blakeswell Close. Flixton
Housing numbered 1-10 back onto Lowther Gardens in Woodsend. The name of Blakeswell at this time is unknown for its origin.

e Blinco Road. Stretford Road Urmston
As this area of Urmston grew Blinco was formed with three homes to its name as of 1904. One called Heaton House started the
road in 1910 but the rest remained un-named. Into 1919 and new names appeared, The Bungalow, Albert Villas, and Avoca. For
2010, there were 23 houses. Jon Court, a detached bungalow, was found so named in 1947. It is thought that Viking raiders off the
Scottish coast brought this name to Briton.

1928 showed small changes with only four now named homes. They were Lyndale, The Bungalow, Glandeg, and Avoca.

Albert Villas. Blinco Road

The 1919 entry for Blinco had Walter Chaloner and Thomas Baker sharing the semidetached home. It is confirmed that Albert Villa
was built in 1904. Walter Greenhalgh and David Smith became occupants by 1938.

Avoca. 10 Blinco Road
1919 showed this house to be in the hands of Harold Williamson and George Albert Spencer trailed him into 1928. Mrs M. Spencer
had ownership for 1939.

Glandeg. Blinco Road
Alfred Low became owner for 1928 on the road of few homes. Glandeg is Welsh meaning “comely”.

Heaton House. Blinco Road

The first date found for Blinco is 1907 and the house there belonged to Mrs. Naomi Heaton
which would provide for its calling. Because of position and dating this is now suggested as
being Lyndale and holding James Harold Heaton responsible for the change in 1919. There is a
small extension to the house making numbering of old difficult to follow. William Hudson was
1911 resident in the main home.

Joncourt. Blinco Road
This Jon had a lounge, living room with range and built in cupboards, four bedrooms two up and two down, bathroom with w/c, a
coal house with tool shed. All contained in a detached style bungalow, there was little to indicate the local of this home by number.

Lyndale. 5 Blinco Road
1928 added this house which was once believed to be Heaton. A homemaker for 1939 was Samuel Davies.

Parling. Blinco Road
Samuel Pilling arrive late here calling this house his in 1939 with neighbour Avoca.

The Bungalow. Blinco Road (Possibly No.13 for the present)
John Robinson lived here for 1919. Up until early 1900 there was only one home on Blinco making, this one, a welcome neighbour.
Further into the 1930 era you could still find John William Robinson here.

Two new names are now known for Blinco, at 18 Hyde Away and 17 Meadfoot, both without detail.

e Boat Lane.
The lane was a short strip of road which led to the ferry at Irlam and the Manchester Ship Canal Incorporated as Irlam Road.

Boat Lane Farm.

The farm ¢.1830 had a close proximity to the canal and sat north to the end of Irlam Road or
Boat Lane as it was called then. William Booth retired from farming at this address in 1893.
William Warburton took possession for 1898-1921 as farmer of this land. He was followed by
Robert Heaton as farmer. A new farmhouse was built in 1938 after subdivision of the lands into
small holdings. Some detail of the farm appeared in 1942 it was then noted as having only

41 acres. Beside the farmhouse there was a barn, stable, shippon and outbuildings. An orchard
and gardens completed the picture.

e Booth Drive. Davyhulme
More than likely named from the Booth Farm that was in the area it has 31 homes.

e Bosdin Roads East and West. Flixton
In the beginnings only one named home had been located for this road. Called Lincluden it was to be found on Bosdin west a semi
numbered as 3. For 1928 a list of eight turned up for the road. The famous local name of Bosdin Leech springs to mind here for
naming. The east side has 26 residential properties while the west only has 8.

1928 Bosdin was referred to as Avenue and Road. For the Avenue it was Brooklyn, Cresswell, Fern Bank, Carbiere, Ashbourne,
The Haven, Lang House, Kenmuir, Kemly, Arnside, Lyndale, Thelma House, Grenada, Oakwood, Brentwood, Lyndene, Burmiston,
Fairhurst, Corralyn, Berwick, Morville, Dorothea, Oak Lea, Aberdour, Rockdene, and Glenmors. The Road again 1928 included
Newhaven, Brookmount, Blencathra, Lincluden, Broom House, Eastwood, Brookside, and The Coppice.
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Bosdin Avenue.

Aberdour. Bosdin Avenue
Clerking was Fraser Egan’s job in 1928 while he spent his time here.

Arnside. Bosdin Avenue
For Walter Barcroft 1928 showed he lived and worked for commercial travelling here.

Ashbourne. Bosdin Avenue
Joseph Flint called this his 1928 home he was a clerk.

Berwick. Bosdin Avenue
Decorator Thomas Wallace must have had a very presentable interior for 1928 here.

Brentwood. Bosdin Avenue
Reginald Faulkner, a clerk, was at home in 1928.

Brooklyn. Bosdin Avenue
Charles Lloyd a commercial traveller resided in this the first home located along the avenue for 1928.

Burmiston. Bosdin Avenue
Thomas Preston stayed in the home during 1928 when out he was a grocer’s assistant.

Carbiere. Bosdin Avenue
Insurance was Harold Pilling’s work, but his home was here in 1928.

Corralyn. Bosdin Avenue
This was Sydney B. Leyland’s home during 1928 he was a cashier.

Cresswell. Bosdin Avenue
1928 shows Gilbert Millar working as a draughtsman from this house.

Dorothea. Bosdin Avenue
1928 cashier George Grice may have been married to Dorothea for the time.

Fairhurst. Bosdin Avenue
Engineering was the qualification of William Bull it allowed him to afford the house.

Fern Bank. Bosdin Avenue
There was not an occupation listed for 1928 and Thomas Gibbons at this address.

Glenmore. Bosdin Avenue
As the last-named home along the avenue 1928 John S. Anderson would have claimed any prize.

Grenada. Bosdin Avenue
Another Draughtsman named, as Arthur Pearson was the 1928 resident for here.

Kemly. Bosdin Avenue
For 1928 Kenneth Monks left this home every day to work as a clerk.

Kenmuir. Bosdin Avenue
A 1928 engineer called Brian M. Hills lived in this house. There is a connection here to the Thomas Bosdin Leech tenement.

Lang House. Bosdin Avenue
Arthur Thraves dwelt here in 1928 a fellow draughtsman to his neighbour.

Lyndale. Bosdin Avenue
Living in the home for 1928 was Paul Miller.

Lyndene. Bosdin Avenue
A 1928 pattern maker lived here called Fred Gardener.

Morville. Bosdin Avenue
George William Dalton kept house for 1928 he was a clerk.

Oak Lea. Bosdin Avenue
Mrs. Annie Beaven maintained the 1928 residence as homemaker.

Oakwood. Bosdin Avenue
1928 engineer Arthur E. Vernon occupied this abode.

Rockdene. Bosdin Avenue
It was to be hoped 1928 ambulance man John Handley was not too busy around town. In 1953 a Justice of the Peace lived in No.3
he was Mr. J. S. Lea.
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The Haven. Bosdin Avenue
Draughting was the occupation of Wallace Bowler as the 1928 homeowner.

Thelma House. Bosdin Avenue
A professional photographer called Robert Marsden perhaps kept a dark room here for 1928.

Bosdin Road

Blencathra. Bosdin Road
Shown as a south side home it belonged to Frederick Hoffman in 1928-1938. Blencathra is a mountain in the Lake District.

Brookmount. Bosdin Road
Arthur Stimpson lived here as a draughtsman during 1928 and continued through to 1939.

Brookside. Bosdin Road
There were three homes down Bosdin on the north side for 1928 this was one of them. It became the abode of Thomas McLean.

Broom House. Bosdin Road
A farmer named as Harry Whitehead in 1928 made home along the south side of road. Insurance official Charles Corbett resided
in the home during 1938-39.

Eastwood. Bosdin Road

East was to the north along the road where John McClaren made home for 1928. During this year
there were only three homes on this side of the road. This one for 1939 was where you would find
James McClaren.

Lineluden. Bosdin Road (Aka. Lincluden)

The house here was where John Jackson stayed while working in 1928 as a chemist representative. It was recorded as being on
the south side of the road. This semi had three bedrooms, two living rooms, kitchenette and pantry, bath with w/c, garage, coal
house and two greenhouses. John was still there recorded in 1939.

Newhaven. Bosdin Road
Marking the beginnings of the road 1928 showed the home of Newhaven with Stephen Smith in residence. John W. Wilson took the
house into 1938-39.

The Coppice. Bosdin Road
This, as the last of three homes down Bosdin, was where 1928 resident Robert Carmac kept house. It was a north side dwelling. A
Chef by the name of Otto Schaer was cooking up a storm in 1939.

e Bowers Avenue. Davyhulme
A count of 34 homes gives rise to this avenue which runs alongside the Trafford General. The avenue is named after Isobel Bowers
of Davyhulme Hall. Park House is often shown here at number 59.

Altran House. Bowers Avenue
A detached home found for the year of 1934. It had four bedrooms, two living rooms, dining room, kitchen and bathroom, and a
garage with a wash house. A 1939 resident was Edward H. Dickinson.

Electricity Board. Bowers Avenue.
The Stretford and District Electricity Board installed a sub-station mid-1930 referring to it as No.36.

¢ Bowfell Road. Flixton
Bowfell links eventually to Hayswater Road which was built to carry traffic with ease from Barton Bridge through to Carrington. Prior
to 1937 there was not a direct connection to provide this important throughway. As a concept it was brought about by E. Leeming
the Town Surveyor and Engineer for the time. Of the 38 properties here 34 are residential with 7 of these as flats. The road leads
off with a post war Ambulance Station that was rebuilt in 1962 and it includes a Leisure Centre. For a period after ww2 it was home
to a UUDC yard or depot. An antiquated milestone still stands along this road. Three reservoirs serviced the Stott Mill from along
Bowfell and for a time there was a brick yard here. Some debate took place in 1935 with
thoughts of retaining the ponds for boating and fishing.

Street documentation of 1939 brought out a remarkable change where many homes were
now named and found to be built in June 1931. The land originated from records around
1891, it was held by the Bowker family who sold to William Haves. Eliza and Smith Dawson of
vy Cottage (Londfield version) Flixton Road bought their piece of it in 1924 before moving
into Brooklyn. This land to the north was to become the Dairy and Market garden held by
William Haves on Moorside Road. The existing throughway, only a dirt road, carried a brook
into the reservoirs of the Brook Road area. The list begins at Wythburn Avenue and
continues as they were and not alphabetically.

The Brook Road Reservoirs were finally filled in by 1963.
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Bowfell north side.

Abri Nous. Bowfell Road
This was the first (Left of the two) on the row tracked down in 1938 with Arthur Broderick as occupant.

Malvern Avenue

Newmarket Cottage. Bowfell Road
Next across Abri was Harry Gregory. (Left of the two)

Rudgley. Bowfell Road
Shop assistant George Broome placed himself here for 1939.

Eagles’ cairn. Bowfell Road
Soaring with the birds in 1939 was Benjamin Butler.

Trafford House. Bowfell Road
Not very original in its name but sufficed for engineer William Williams around 1938-39.

Chiltern. Bowfell Road
1939 homemaker was Mrs Hilda Nicholas.

Wynyard. Bowfell Road
J. J. Hindley lived in this yard circa 1939.

Dorern. Bowfell Road
The 1939 house for Florence Chapleo.

Hazeldene. Bowfell Road
Comfortable here in 1938-39 was Mrs Alice Ramsden.

Brooklyn. Bowfell Road
Insurance was the occupation of 1939 Tom Jones.

Glen Esk. Bowfell Road
M.B. Ch. B were the letters after Garth Stoneham’s name when he lived here in 1938.

Heather Lea. Bowfell Road
Ernest Petter sat among the heather during 1938-39.

Lynton. Bowfell Road
Perhaps the town of Lynton brought memories for Jack Bate who made this his home in 1939.

Yorke Dene. Bowfell Road
The last-named house along the row belonged to 1939 settler Mrs Edith Wood.

Here is Craigs Road.

Bowfell South Side.

The shops of 1934 to be found after the Curzon began as two. As time passed one was
added to the left of the block and two more to the right. This becomes obvious after looking
at the brickwork, roofing, and styling. All adding up to the five for the present.

It was here that the Maple Leaf Café existed selling its tasty griddle cakes.

Robinsons Confectioners. 1 Bowfell Road
The shop was run by Albert William Holden in what would appear to be closest to the Curzon for 1939.

Regal Hairdressing Salon. 3 Bowfell Road
No details other than Charles Edward Meredith Living over the shop according to 3 and 3a for the address.

Irelands Hardware. 5 Bowfell Road.
No details available other than a 1949 existence.
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Rutlynd. Bowfell Road
Harry Hindley is given for 1939 cornering Malvern.

Malvern Avenue.
Matley. Bowfell Road

Only one house past Malvern it was this one that had James Hill
at home for the years 1938-39.

Bowfell Circle.

As a circle it played host to many amenities, The Curzon, Urmston Baths, and just to one side the
Princess Rooms. Urmston boasted other circles of a similar type, Davyhulme, Woodsend, Moss Vale, and
Hayswater. The Circle originated with the road in 1937. New also for those times was Moor5|de Road
from Corn Hill through to Crofts Bank Road.

Bowfell, baths, circle, and cinema.

Curzon Cinema. Bowfell Circle Flixton

Built by a cinema giant called Ernest Nash-Eaton (1881-1957) who once lived at Highfield House, it was the only one of three
cinemas left in the district. Proposed in 1934 it was to be placed at the corner of Moorside Road. The
building at a relocated site of Bowfell was started in 1935; December 1939 is advised as its opening date.
The stage area was 45ft wide and 20ft deep it had the feature of three dressing rooms available for when
there were live performances. The architect was a Mr. Winstanley of unknown detail.

Declining patronage brought about a twin cinema, and bingo, now it is a school for dance. Subject to some
renovation it tried to survive against the newer cinemas available. The Curzon reopened again after some
patching to the roof and repair of the heating system in September 2007. September 2008 and once more
the cinema closed, they could not meet the criteria for the funding assistance offered by the Lottery
Corporation. The school of dance has taken up the challenge expanding its classes there to encompass
more of the building, as a cinema, it has ridden off into the sunset.

Added here are some detailed facts: The Curzon Cinema was often called the New Curzon. This was developed by a company
called Curzon Land and Development Company Limited who sold out mid-1950 to G. B. Snape a circuit of cinemas and booking
offices. They had Cinemascope installed and a new Western Electric sound system was added and included cinemascope. For the
modern films a screen 39ft wide and 16ft high became a necessity. As of 2011, it was owned by the holding Company of Curzon
Enterprises.

Accompaniment.

The local cinemas were opened in the era of silent movies. This meant each having some form of music to accompany the films.
The Palace and the Empress catered for this by means of the piano only the Curzon had a suggested, but
never found or confirmed, theatre organ in its orchestra pit which was reportedly removed once 'talkies'
became the norm. Since this entry it has been confirmed that provision was made for an organ, but it
never got installed. A further fact was that at the Empress soloists and chorales often provided
accompaniment to films dependent on the showing. A young Miss. Felicity Riley was prominent.

For legal reasons council was forced in to charging a 5% fee to anyone hiring a public place where music
was to be included this was copyright payable to the music industry.

Urmston Baths. Bowfell Circle

The Baths were erected in 1932 and officially opened by Councillor Lt. Gen. Samuel Stott in March 1933. A day of free swimming
. was the prize in 1983 to celebrate fifty years of operation and the papers reported that 2.5

million people had visited during this time. Surviving until June 1987 when the economics

dictated that it was too expensive to maintain specially to update the filtering system. There

were other concerns, the glass dome began to disintegrate, and the steel structure was rusting

away.

Designed by Ernest Leeming he saw the project through from start to finish. The
Construction was by Brew Bros. of Cadishead and the steel work supplied by Edward Wood
and Co. from Manchester. Royle Engineering of Irflam carried out the filtration system.
Special gas lighting was installed by 1937 for full illumination of the exterior. The dome,
which was glazed, reached a height of fifty feet above the water and, at the 4ft end, a fully
equipped Gymnasium, and an additional feature was underwater flood lighting that included
underwater viewing. June 1969 showed that the slipper baths were to be converted in a
sauna unit. In 1968 the baths were kept open for a winter season for the first time. Vending
machines were introduced in 1986.
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The baths originally closed during the winter months and sporting events that included boxing or dances were held there. The

S supply and first erection of flooring was tendered in 1945 by the :
council, thereafter they did it themselves. Sir Matt Busby
Manchester United, with the aid of Don Revie Manchester City,
held indoor soccer coaching there in 1955. With some care and
attention one can still see the original wall that encased the front
gardens and entrance. The stonework is hidden among the trees
and shrubbery but quite evident as it surrounds the present
residences. The standard lights are gone from the two main
posts. It is now a communal residential property called
Charleston Square and a clinic.

Bowfell House. Bowfell and Brook Road

This was the new calling for the Brook Road Library building of old. The Art Deco architecture was
removed for simple brickwork and a standard sloped roof. Only the entry columns are still visible.
The house was available for community hire as it is divided into several spaces. This, as a
landmark, was sold and as a landmark demolished in 2015. Bowfell is known for its Lake District
calling.

Maple Leaf Café. Bowfell Road.

Griddle cakes were the speciality of this Canadian origin café. Sitting next door to the Curzon and a
convenient location to the Bath’s it derived much business as passing trade ¢.1950. For a smile
here was a Myna bird that greeted customers on their arrival or departure. At this time of 2018, it is
now a takeaway shop.

Mllestone Bowfell Road at Jackson Court

' Few milestones exist on today’s roadways. However, there is one on
Bowfell Road that dates back to 1937. It commemorates the opening
of the road, on one of its three sides, by the Vice Chair for the
Lancashire County Council A. P. MacDonald JP. The stone shows
Urmston and indicates mileage to both Manchester 9% and Barton
Bridge 2¥a. The reverse side of the stone is 8 miles from Lymm and
32 from Chester.

Scarfell. Bowfell Road
A housing complex sited on the grounds of the UUDC Yard of old.

Urmston Sports Centre. Bowfell Road.

No real details other than in 1987 the plan was approved. It now sits on what were parts of the rear
playing fields of the Flixton Girls School. This particular ground once belonged to the Stott Cotton
Mill and was the source of the reservoirs that fed the mill with water. When the mill was dismantled
the rubble was used to fill in the wells. The complex has a small version of a library and a swimming
pool.

SR

One item of interest is that the plaque that proclaimed the opening of the Urmston Baths in 1933
has been mounted here as a memento of the occasion.

e Braddon Avenue. Urmston
Only 10 dwellings make up Braddon which was developed around 1928. It sits off Derby Road. A Braddon translates into a ‘Broad
Hillside’ in both Irish and English.

e Bradfield Road. Urmston
Once called Chadwick Lane, it was home to some very old housing most of which has been removed during its redevelopment, this
came around 1935 and it now has 71 properties 68 of these are residential. For current times only one carries a name, that of Birch
House. Bradfield originates from Suffolk, Lords of the Manor there held ancient seats.

Lowe Dairy. Bradfield Road
A dairy many remember run by Alfred Lowe who included milk from the Channel Islands to his own. The official calling was
Highfield Dairy, but the name of Lowe & Son took over.
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St. Anthony’s R. C. High School. Bradfield Road

Land for this school was obtained around 1943 in a plan combining the English Martyrs Church
and St. Hugh of Lincoln built in 1964 on Glastonbury Road Stretford. Once Chadwick lane was
redeveloped in 1959 the site was developed for the school. As St. Paul’s, St. Anthony’s came
later, there appears to be some connection to the Manchet Field which was finally obtained to
complete extensions to the school in the 1990’s.

St. Pauls. Bradfield Road
See St. Anthony. The school celebrated its opening as the 50" anniversary arrived in this the year of 2011.

Urmston Grammar School. Bradfield Road (Urmston Bank)

A separate school for boys was opposed by the Parents Guild in 1955 but a new school was
opened in 1961 which only lasted until 1991 when it closed down, the boys then returned to
Ross Grove. This land today is all residential property.

e Braemar Avenue. Flixton
The 40 homes, that complete this avenue, sit along one of the lost footpaths of Flixton. A portion of the Penny Lane that went from
Church Road to the bridge is now the divide to the golf course.

e Bransford Road. Davyhulme
Even numbers 2-14 make up this small road. Bransford is an old Staffordshire name.

e Brecon Avenue. Flixton
Close to Woodsend Primary School the avenue has odd numbered homes of 1-15. Brecon has Welsh origin.

e Brentwood Avenue. Westbourne Road
Numbered as north1-7 and south 2-8, 1902 saw this developing street arise coming up for auction as free hold. This naming is a
corruption of ‘Burning Wood'.

e Briar Close. Flixton
The close which sits behind the Garrick and off Brook Road has 12 homes to its name. The Briar is described as a ‘thorny plant’ but
a nicer way of its recognition is Heather.

e Bricks and Beams.

1894 shows that Samuel Worthington-Wright was offering land in Flixton, its main feature being
a bed of clay suitable for brick making. It was free of lime and had close proximity to a layer of
sand. The land only described, as being on the High road from Flixton to Urmston does not
confirm its whereabouts only the knowledge that this gives thought to a beginning.

Reports say that Mosedale Brick Works was not the first brick maker in Flixton that honour goes
' to a company called Coupe who was utilizing the local clay there for several years. Bricks were
also made in Urmston over at Newcroft where a works was established next to the Hall. A brick works has been traced to Cob Kiln
Lane detail is unknown. Millatt, the farmer, had brick making associated with his agricultural holding in 1871. In another finding for
1879 in Davyhulme there was a brick making operation that passed under the name of The Old House. Its identification being that it
sat on Lime Kiln Field and comprised of two acres, this coincides with Lilly Bank on Davyhulme Road.

Also, Davyhulme, the fields of Broadway behind Brook House were home to another of these works shown in 1910-11 as
Mosedale. A new location for a Brick Works has been confirmed for Flixton. Appearing on the large side it could be found on the
grounds known today as The Spinney close to Bowfell in 1891.

When Urmston Hall was demolished in 1937 the bricks and beams were removed and utilized to
build a house on Carlton Crescent. Beams in general would have arrived from one of the local
sawmills like Spark's. Exploratory results show no actual brick called an Urmston or a Flixton,
however samples of a Coupe Flixton brick can be seen included in the terrace of Pool Plat on
Carrington Road.

Brick Ground and Brickfield. Flixton

In 1905 a postman called Joseph Green married in Worsley, at the time he gave his residential address as 4 Brick Ground Flixton.
This location has not yet been found. A likely place would have been around the Brickworks at Mersey View. (Four Lane Ends)

A house carrying the name of Brickfield is recorded in the census of 1851. No street address was given but with a possible
connection to the Brick Ground.
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Flixton Brickworks.

Occupying much acreage of Flixton at its Carrington Road location the brickworks of the 1890’s had
been there for many years. This point was called Mersey View and the factory is now standing
derelict. Early in 1894 Thomas Mosedale and family lived on the Crofts Bank Road and close to the
Nags Head; he was already into making bricks working from the Brook House yard. Thomas
acquired the Flixton Works from Coupe Bros. in 1913.
Recognition for another achievement is due to Thomas, he
was President of the Manchester Brickworks Assn. In recent
times a renaming has occurred for this section of Flixton, the
Mersey Valley Conservation has established an area called Green Hill as a natural habitat
south and west of the works there. The land occupied by the works belonged to the
Worthington Wright Estate, it was vacated around 1972.

e Bridgewater Circle. Dumplington
Another newer circle installed on Trafford Boulevard which links to Redclyffe Circle at Barton Road.

e Bridgenorth Avenue. Urmston
Old times refer to this under Moss Vale Road and up until 1935 it was called Highfield Avenue. There are 3 flats registered here
and one abode as the road wends its way close to the school.

Highfield Bank, View, and Villa.

Three stately houses built at the rear of Highfield House in the 1860’s and on what was called The Avenue and later Highfield
Avenue. (Now called Bridgenorth Ave) These houses were built for the relatives of Samuel Taylor who was from Newcroft. Only the
Villa remains of the three.

The Highfield Bank was a large house built onto an existing cottage, big enough to incorporate six bedrooms and a billiard room.
Badly damaged during ww2 the house had to be demolished in 1948. The entry into Bridgenorth Avenue passes over the spot
where this house stood. An early street address was for Moss Road and it had, in 1898, Mrs. Smelt living there. For the 1939
period it was Frank Gladstone. Two entertaining rooms and a study were included.

The Highfield View was made up of two semi-detached homes where tenants came and went.
Called comfortable in 1865 each had two parlours, two kitchens and four bedrooms. Eventually
falling into the hands of the Urmston Council it was empty by 1974. A small private church stood on
the site after the View was removed. At the View was 1905 occupant Fredrick Johnson with two
residents for 1938-39 they were Robert Edgar and Walter Vincent.

The Highfield Villa again was two semi-detached units but with an added third floor which made it
tall in comparison to its neighbour. There were six bedrooms and two living rooms with no further
information in 1914. This Villa still stands next to Birch House which is a new building, and it has
been utilised as office space and living accommodation. The presentation from Bradfield Road is the
rear of the building. Mrs Annie Purcell and Alfred Lowe show as residing here in 1939. Alfred was a
well-respected dairyman for the time as Lowe’s Dairy.

Highfield Primary School. Bridgenorth Avenue
C ¥ i The school occupies the remaining vacated land of Highfield House and sits m‘}‘
& &7 alongside the motorway. There are no details available about the actual school or Qo

e s -+— ' its history other than it opened in April 1954. This accompanying picture was \ *"—“i /

H R drawn by a pupil of the Headmaster, Mr. Parfitt. (2009 / z
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With apologies and a smile to Mr. Parfitt " !' ]
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A Blue Plaque is in place here as a tribute to Marshall Stevens whose home once stood here.

e Bridle Close. Flixton
With no number one, the Close follows with 2-10 in following numerical order.

e Brighton Avenue. Off Woodsend Road
Sometime between 1890 and 1903 the avenue appeared with six, then nine, residences. It had doubled in size through to 1911
then, last noted in 2011, there were 22 properties there.

e Brighton Grove. Off Woodsend Road
Along with the Avenue this Grove arrived offering five homes for 1898 it increased to 10 families into the early 1900’s. In neither the
Grove, nor the Avenue, places were not named for this year. Building along here began around 1897.

e Broadoaks Road. Flixton
Broadoaks has 35 housing units built on what was once Shawcross land holdings.
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e Broadway. Croft Hall Estate Davyhulme
Once the road changes from Woodhouse it becomes Broadway through to Barton Road, it was adopted by council in 1938. There
are 104 properties including the Bent Brook Hotel. Broadway was used as one of the two sites where prefabricated homes were
erected to ease the housing shortage during the war the other was Kingsway. Origins date to ¢.1937 with the last 18 one
bedroomed bungalows dated as 1965 to be built by Kenkast.

Bent Brook Hotel. 161 Broadway

Only established in 1962, it was considered a new pub to Davyhulme with Maunders as the
builder. The hotel is named so as it sits on the bend of the local brook. Refurbished in 2009 it is
open once again catering to the more youthful side of this area, modern style music and
atmosphere being proffered to attract its clientele.

92 Broadway. Davyhulme
This became home to 1953 Justice of the Peace Mr. W. Morrissey.

Broadway Park. (Public)

Around 1940 this area contained a small natural lake which was filled in. It became one of two
major land fill sites now converted as grassed parks. It is of little use as anything else due to
subsidence and poor drainage. 1953 had it connected to the Collingwood Recreational Grounds.
A contract between George Saunders and the council was to land fill with ash from Barton Power
and convert into grasslands. The Urmston Council erected dressing rooms and conveniences
there in 1961. A sports pavilion was to be found but it caught fire in 1977, it gave the appearance
of being rebuilt or replaced. The bowling green and club house are now closed with the green
converted into a rest garden

e Broadway Close. Davyhulme
This Close is off Broadway itself and has 12 houses on it.

e Broad Side Cottages. Flixton
The fact that Wright Lea Shawcross married Lucy Ann Alty in 1903 brought this address to
attention. They both resided there before heading to St. Michael’'s Church.

e Bromley Avenue. Flixton

The 30 homes of this avenue have origins back to 1890 Flixton.
A London Borough is called by this name. The terraces here are
yet to be established by name as they line both sides of the
avenue. The avenue began as Victoria, later being changed
once more, into Albert. Both of these were named in Urmston
and so had to be re-designated.

e Brookfield Avenue. Flixton
There are 5 homes on this avenue that date from 1926. Related documents indicate land here from 1877 and owned by Wood of
the nearby farm. Number 2 has a name that of Holnest, the meaning is unknown.

e Brook Road. Flixton 1900 (Thorn Lane)
This was the predecessor to Brook Road during the era of the 1800’s.

The date of 1848 and mapping for the lane has a brook and culvert directly associated. References
show that in 1868 this was called Brook Lane formerly Thorn Lane. West at the corner of Flixton
Road we have Thorn Cottage (Brook Cottage to some) before the newly built terraces ¢.1898 of
Ringmore and Shaldon. The east side started with various homes numbered as 22-66 here they
included the Co-op at N0.30. Lastly, appropriately named, was Lane Ends at Moorside Road. The
Eden Terrace appeared c.1903 as the neighbours to the newly planned Church. The year 2010
showed 6 commercial and 50 residences.

1928 for Brook Road found only a few homes with any calling they were: Ringmore, Shaldon, Lochiel, Lindum, and Gairloch,
followed by Eden Terrace to round off the road. There is a reference to a Brookfield found for 1932-1933 with Mrs Robinson at
home, it has not been found for location at this time. The terraces of Ringmore and Shaldon were joined as one in 2018 this was
done with sympathetic architecture.

Brook Road Methodist Church. Brook Road

The original Wesley Church on Moorside Road became too small
and costly to renovate. Therefore, on land donated by the John
Wood family, a new church and Sunday school was built and
opened in 1905. The opening was performed by Miss. M. Wilkinson
and officiating was Rev. F. L. Wiseman. A stone laying ceremony
took place in 1937 to mark the building of a new Sunday school this
was opened January 1938 by Sabina Alker.

Photographs show the magnificence of this Gothic structure which carried a large organ, wooden pews, and choir stalls. For 1946 a
celebration was held here, it had seen two hundred years of Methodism. John Wesley arrived in 1746 to preach in Davyhulme for
the first time. Finally, it closed to be replaced by a smaller modern church around 1978. The site presently is home to Loughfield.
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Bowfell House. (Brook Road Library Building) Brook Road
This 1939 Art Deco building was reduced to an inconsequential structure carrying no character
what-so-ever. Originally designed by the County architect Stephen Wilkinson from Preston.
Internal furniture and fittings were ordered in Oak, as were the book racks. Built from brick it
looked classical, the desigh was not unlike a church with a tall entrance arch and a rounded
apsidal end with plain bricked columns supporting the over
sailing roof, lower transept-like wings with similar rounded
ends and brick columns. A gabled bay entrance with the
entrance again, showing tall columns. A room inside this
library was named to honour Councillor John Newton. He was
the founder of the library at Collingwood and had served on the library committee for 25 years.
The inscription was enclosed in a wooden frame and hung in an appropriate room for 1953.
John Walter Newton 1877-1955. The building was opened in July 1939 by T. A. Farrell.

Efforts by the local population to retain this building as a Library failed to impress the Council in 1997. The building was renamed as
Bowfell House, it closed in 1998 reopening in 2003 for community hire in general. A bleak future was in store as the building was
offered for sale in the private sector. Developers have removed this piece of the past as of 2015 and a new care facility is to take its
place in 2019.

Brook or Thorn Cottage. Brook and Flixton Roads

A stylish cottage from ¢.1800 and owned by the Brown'’s sat on this corner that later was listed as
__ the home of the Whitnall's in 1901. By 1957 it was a newsagent and tobacconist called Stimsons,
£ today refurbished back into a cottage once more. The finely preserved cottage is noted of old as
being Thorn Cottage. It is probably known to some as Brook because today it is addressed as 1
Brook Road while its front entrance is on Flixton Road.

This cottage has shown many people to live here each year the records changed with only the
converted shop remaining stable, especially regarding the Whitnall's George and daughter Edith
who operated it as a dress shop and tailors during the 1890’s. The cottage housed a well-frequented news agency, Jumps, around
1938, Edith Jump was the name to be known.

Eden Terrace. Brook Road

Located on the east side with the Co-op as neighbour, this terrace made room for four families in 1890. They were the Rodgers,
Gilbody’s, Johnson'’s, and Heaton’s. Later directories show this to have been increased with Eden accounting for eight homes close
to the Co-op by 1904. A property called by this name was a part of the Royle family’s holdings.

Lane Ends. Brook Road
This was aptly named being the last building on the east side of Brook Road about 1890. Mrs. Martha Whitnall was a householder
for 1901 with also there, Joseph Woodworth, and Jesse Pearcy. The three homes of Lane Ends have been redeveloped.

Brook Road four homes. East

Leading on from the church towards Moorside Road a pair of semidetached homes each of
the four were named. Right to left; Lochnel, Lindum, Gairloch, and Craigmore. For an
approximate dating they came about the same time as the church 1905.

Lochnel. (Lochiel) Brook Road

The home was recorded in 1919 as the next house to the Chapel on the east side of Brook
Road. James Lincoln Collinge was living there as a Cloth Agent. The calling had small
variations of spelling Lochiel being one of them. Robert Peel was a cotton salesman here
around 1938.

Lindum. (Linoun) Brook Road
This home was well established before it was named in 1928. It was a neighbour to Gairloch shown as an early 1900 house.
Different spelling over its years and by 1939 it gave the impression of being Linoun that had Arthur Bishop as being there.

Gairloch. Brook Road
The home of a brewer called Charles Robert Jolliffe it could be found on the east side of the road and close to Eden Terrace in or
around 1919. A later resident 1927 was a steel smelter called Leslie Wass. Gairloch is Gaelic for a ‘short loch’.

Craigmore. Brook Road
This home was built before it was named in 1928 in fact ten years earlier. It was placed at the corner of Clifton Road and Arthur
Wallworth showed up for the christening. This was one home out of two semidetached after the Church.

Ringmore. Brook Road

Tracing old homes found this terrace sitting across from the old library. Referred to as Rangmore in
early Slaters directory it is still occupied as accommodation from 1900. Ringmore did not show in
1898 records. One of several features this group had was that of colourful leaded windows and
doors. The small terrace sits on the west side of the road.

The two terraces, Ringmore and Shaldon, have been joined as one since 2018.
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Shaldon. Brook Road

A slightly longer terraced home but the same architecture as its next-door neighbour Ringmore. The
terrace, sitting on the west side, was noted for its decorative trim along the underside of the roofing
and its ornate front doors. As Shaldon did not turn up in the 1898 directory, it is believed to be
newly built in 1900.

The Eccles and District Co-op was well established on Brook ¢.1897 and is entered with the CWS. It was the practice of the

business to open a shop before building a permanent style of their own; here they did this in 1906. All in use for the present
commercially in alternate business.

Thornfield. Brook Road.
The treasurer of the Davyhulme Council School, Charles Haughton, gave this address for his residence in 1924.

West Side Shops. Brook Road

Purpose built with accommodation over, the block came during 1930. The best list found so
far was for 1938. This showed at No.55 Ellen Hindley as a Hairdresser, 57 a Butcher named
as Alfred Holmes, Fried Fish for No.59 with Arnold Colewood frying. Two Grocers followed,
at 61 Doris Cross and 63 Ken Jowett, number 65 and lastly News Agent James Wrigley.

e Brooklyn Avenue. Flixton
The avenue and its housing are built on land that was Whiteheads Farm. They came into being
circa 1918 with the known named home here of Roslyn at No.2. Western Road then leads into
Brooklyn and it is headed by the Grange. Later a named home found, that of Westways for
1941. For the avenue and 1926-7 it had 26 named homes in a huge development for the era.
There are 41 homes currently to be found there, the majority of these came in or around 1980.
- Its origin is Dutch and means Broken Land. 1928 shows a lot more names for the time:
Kenniston, Bromarsh, Cartref, Strathmead, Arnside, Everdale, Tyneside, Lingholme,
Rookwood, Avondale, Elimina, The Kyle’s, Glen cairn, Clovelly, Kilrea, Cranny’s, Hather-sage,
Ivydene, Seravale, Cristbank, West View, Ardbeg, Latosa, St Germaine, Wyecoller, Churston, Heversham, Rosieries, Wilton
Cottage, Holme Lea, Fern Lea, and Heathfield.

S0y

Ardbeg. Brooklyn Avenue
Begging for peace and quiet was Samuel Normansell whose home this was for 1927 he was stated as being a foreman. Ardbeg is
Scottish and has a Scotch Whiskey connection.

Arnside. Brooklyn Avenue
This became available around 1927 along the avenue. A blacksmith was occupying the house by the name of James Eyres.

Avondale. Brooklyn Avenue
Laying down the glove Joseph Gauntlet had this 1927 home.

Beravale. Brooklyn Avenue
1927 resident Reginald Brown made this home look smart he was a designer.

Bromarsh. Brooklyn Avenue
Topping the list of callings after 1920 this house showed the way into Brooklyn, it belonged to Frank Corran.

Cartref. Brooklyn Avenue
The 1920’s house, which was third in line along the avenue, placed this home for reference. A draughtsman names Heywell Davis
kept home for 1927. Cartref simply means ‘abode’ in Welsh.

Chris Bank. Brooklyn Avenue
Watch repairing was the occupation of 1928 resident Horace Williams.

Churston. Brooklyn Avenue
Churston had Grimshaw, Harold, resident, 1928, electrical engineer.

Crannys. Brooklyn Avenue
The home of Frank Buck during 1927 had him looking through its nooks and crannies.

Elimina. Brooklyn Avenue
Unknown for any detail its owner was perhaps eliminated. Not so, as in 1928 a Stanley Kes has been traced for it being his home.
Stan was a Post Office official.

Everdale. Brooklyn Avenue
Herbert Thorp sat for ever here at least in 1928.

Fern Lea. Brooklyn Avenue
This was where 1928 Harry Thomson an engineer dwelt.
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Flixton Grange. Brooklyn Avenue

Stately half-timbered Jacobean style home once as on Irlam Road is now occupied as apartments.
James Hammer Ashton bought it in 1893 then by adding on and converting the existing Green Lane
Lodge he created The Grange. James was in the timber business and incorporated much fine wood
into this home. Aside from the timber connection James was Chairman for
the Liberal Club 1827-1892. By 1927 the Grange had passed into the
hands of Mrs Elizabeth Ashton. An application to have the Grange listed
was turned down in 1981 having been altered too much from its original
form. The Tradesmen'’s entry from Irlam Road is today still seen.

Quoting the Trustee for the sale; “A picturesque half-timbered residence of
exceptional character and charm”

This historical building went for auction in 1932, its accommodation presented as follows; Entrance porch, lounge hall panelled in
dark oak with gallery above, around which is grouped the bedroom accommodation, cloak room with lavatory fixed, thee
entertaining rooms, kitchen, scullery and usual domestic offices. Next came six bedrooms upon the first floor (three ensuite) two
maid’s rooms approached by back staircase on the second floor. Special attention is directed to the costly fittings throughout and to
the wealth of oak panelling. The house is economically planned, easily worked and is fitted with central heating and electric light.
The outbuildings, which are in character with the house, include garage for two cars surmounted by a handsome clock tower, two
greenhouses, two stalled stable, washhouse, another garage, and useful buildings. All frontages are paved and gated.

The long list of furniture and embellishments that was also presented for sale was so impressive it left little to the imagination of
how the style of living had been maintained. From Chippendale tables, to oil paintings from renowned artists, from the summer
house and the fine china, it went on. A grand piano, a pipe organ, mahogany this, and oak that, armour and weaponry. All offering
so much to absorb and enjoy the picture of opulence presented. The next name to appear was Guy Child with a date of 1939
shortly after the sale, it is not known as to if he bought it.

Glencairn. Brooklyn Avenue
The family of Thomas Heggie welcomed a baby boy here in 1927. He knew as much about the Cairn as this entry does.

Heath Field. Brooklyn Avenue
1928 traced this field to Horace Fairclough who earned his pay as a clerk.

Heather Sage. Brooklyn Avenue
All the Tees to Thomas Tongue who spelt thing differently in 1928 as the home was also called Hather Sage at times.

Heversham. Brooklyn Avenue
The house of Heversham had 1928 occupancy of Miss. Edisfort.

Holme Lea. Brooklyn Avenue
The Holme was home to the Edwin Webster family and 1928 was the period.

Ivydene. Brooklyn Avenue
Albert Scott called this house in 1928 his own.

Kenniston. Brooklyn Avenue
In 1928-1938 Albert Taylor lived here as an early homemaker on the off shoot to Irflam Road.

Kilrea. Brooklyn Avenue
The translation from Irish is ‘Church on the hill’ in 1928 it had Charles Wall who could have visited there at some time.

Latosa. Brooklyn Avenue
Noisy or annoying would be the Spanish translation, in 1928, Leslie Butler would not have been like that as he was a postal worker.

Lingholme. Brooklyn Avenue
A salesman called this 1927 house his abode he was Philip Milbourne.

Rookwood. Brooklyn Avenue
Plumbing was the speciality of 1928 tradesman Frank Robinson.

Roslyn. Brooklyn Avenue

This calling was very popular around the district. It was built 1894 according to evidence but
carries little information otherwise. For that time a surgeon lived there named as James Walls and
he stayed to 1919, then it was the turn of William Richards who was a fitter. By 1939 it was
Donald Brown a brass foundry worker.

Rosieries. Brooklyn Avenue
The garden might have grown roses for 1928 joiner Frank Parr.

St. Germaine. Brooklyn Avenue
This French connection had Alfred Stephenson at home in 1928.

Strathmead. Brooklyn Avenue
In 1928 this dwelling was third as one entered into the avenue which accounted for many named places in this year.
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The Kyles. Brooklyn Avenue
This belonged to John Currie who was hot for this 1928 house.

The Pines. Brooklyn Avenue
This attractive semi proffered in 1928; Hall, dining room, drawing room with bay window, kitchen, scullery, four bedrooms, bathroom
with w c, cellars, and exit to the garden. It had full gardens back and front.

Tyneside. Brooklyn Avenue
The year of 1919 brought this house to the list of Flixton homes. James Hodgson was in residence
for this year with Henry Ireland occupying the second half.

West View. Brooklyn Avenue
The view was where the Davenport family lived during the year of 1927.

Whitehead Farm. Brooklyn Ave

The Whitehead Farm sat behind the Flixton Council Offices off Flixton Road and close to
Ambleside. This farm was a familiar sight 1920-30. The picture was captioned as Hay making
at Whiteheads.

Wilton Cottage. Brooklyn Avenue
At the corner of Bosdin Road the 1927 cottage kept the Nicholson family comfortable.

Wyecoller. Brooklyn Avenue
Frederick Tame was looking after the 1928 house of Wye.

e Brundritt Lane. (Brundrell Lane)
An old address recorded in 1851 as being off Millers Lane at Woodsend, there was a home there for this year called Brundritt. The
lane no longer exists. There are other references to Brundrell Lane for this period; they appear to be one and the same.

Broom Cottage. Brundrell Flixton
This cottage was recorded in a directory of 1851 but without detail of where it could be found. It reappeared in 1882 sitting on
Brundrell Lane with stable, piggery, hen pen, and greenhouse. It contained three acres of land and had an orchard.

e Bude Avenue. Flixton
The 1930’s era is given for Bude which has 16 homes. Bude has Cornwall connections in its name. One named home only that of
Plynlimon that was ceded to council in leu of outstanding mortgage in 1934.

e Bulwark Road. Davyhulme
This road no longer exists being taken as a once industrial site and converted into retail. For today the closest indicator would be
the Neary Way as it branches off from there. Only two examples of business are indicated.

Ancliff Tankers. Bulwark Road

The Davyhulme Company of Ancliff carried the Urmston name all over Britain. At first it showed as
John Ancliff only to have the John dropped as the company grew. Carries of bulk liquid, and or,
anything that needed this form of transportation they eventually came face to face with a takeover
to become Bulwark Transport. Registered during the 1950-60’s they moved on soon after.

o i}
Stones Scaffolding Ltd. Bulwark Road i Ei‘i‘

As a subsidiary of Palmers Travelling Cradle Co. Ltd. the Stones Company arrived in Urmston for
1961. Their speciality was, as both names suggest, scaffold and travelling cradles for construction and
maintenance. This was something they were good at as the parent company could offer experience
from 1890.
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e Burford Avenue. Davyhulme
1935 gave start here and it has 21 residential houses.

e Burnham Drive. Davyhulme
The Drive is numbered odds 1-9. Burnham has town origins in Norfolk and Somerset.
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e Bus.
It was announced in 1846 that John Thornton was to operate an Omnibus route in the town. It was to run through Flixton, Urmston,
and Davyhulme with a final pick up stop at Crofts Bank. From there it would travel to
Manchester via Stretford. In 1848 John was fined £5 for running the bus on a Sunday.
By 1869 competition was fierce the companies of Shawcross & Worrall (Worrel) were in
opposition to the Stretford Omnibus Company in trying to capture the public for this form
of transportation. To officially name a company that first ran involving a motorised
public service is difficult, the company of Ryknield show that they operated buses in
1907 through the district.

The first recognised bus service was owned by Harry Smith ¢.1901 and was to be found behind the Victoria Hotel in Urmston in
what was then known as Victoria Mews, later to become Bold's Garage. The service linked Stretford and Urmston. The horse
drawn vehicle was replaced with a motor bus in 1913 but during ww1 the War Department requisitioned the vehicle and Mr. Smith
returned to using the horse drawn bus. North Western ran the local bus service in 1920 it operated a route from Flixton Station and
through to Station Road, Urmston. The Lord Nelson also acted as a terminus for the beginnings of this mode of transport.

Bus Experiment.

For a trial two motorized omnibuses were brought into Manchester in 1906. They ventured into the suburbs to show Greater
Manchester the future of transport. Passengers could ride, by invitation only, from Urmston to Hale
for a demonstration of their comfort, reliability, and convenience. Each bus travelled at 16 MPH and
was described as Vanguard Class the same as used in London. Accommodation was for 36
passengers seated inside and on top, the double wheels are solid rubber and the whole bus
weighed 4 tons. A company had not yet been formed but they were waiting on the availability of a
fleet of 50.

1906 Vanguard

They were still trying for this service in 1927 but the route changed to Urmston - Droylsden via Piccadilly, it came into operation in
1928 as a joint venture between Manchester Corporation and North Western. The service expanded over the years, but it took until
1934 to get council to allow double decker transport through the district.

Bus Route. ¢.1950

North Western ran a very efficient service after the war which covered the main districts of Urmston, Flixton, and Davyhulme to
Piccadilly Manchester. Three buses ran routes which allowed passengers to avail themselves of transport around Davyhulme and
on to Woodsend; the numbers were 11, 13, and 23. This last one terminated at Woodsend.

Urmston was privy to the 3, and 5, which travelled down Flixton Road and
the 12 for Church Road. Ultimately all three finished up in Flixton at the Mile
Road Terminus. Also, at this time there was a connection from the Urmston
Station to Eccles passing by the number of 22. As the area grew the bus
system included a route to Partington numbered as 107.

A note of interest is that the 22 had to be a single decker, as it was required
to pass under a low bridge once it reached the Patricroft side of the canal
and on to Eccles.

Bus Shelters.

Although it is difficult to see on this picture it does show the first bus shelter in the area. On Stretford
Road and by the Manor Gardens this tiny structure was brick built and carried a corrugated iron roof
~i which curved away from the road. Internally there was a wooden bench seat and the frontage was
half walled but totally open to the weather. Suggested is that this arrangement came around 1940
and was most certainly still there into 1960. Between 1964 and 1968 Council purchased 21
prefabricated timber shelters, complete with flower boxes, for installation around the district.

The most unusual bus stops at one time were the circular
(Rotunda) shelters that were once found on routes.
Outside of the Roebuck Hotel on Church Road the corner |
here comprised of the shelter, underground toilets, and
behind, a rose garden. Smaller versions sat at the
Davyhulme Circle across from Hayeswater Road and at
Woodsend near the Red Lion.

Single decker on Station Bridge for Eccles
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e Butcheries.
See Vernon, Cuthbert, Howarth, and Holdsworth, these have been around a long time. Some other
well-established names would be Holcroft & Long of Station Road, Mason, and Parkin, of both Church
Road and another, Traynor at Woodsend. An advert of 1873 selling a butcher’s shop stated that there
was no other in the village of Urmston for that time. A marriage in 1910 really confused the trade as
George Vernon’s son Wilfred took Joseph Holdsworth’s daughter Mary for his wife.

Holdsworth and Vernon both held shop here until Howarth moved in.

C

e Caister Close. Flixton
The homes are 8 in number for the Close. The calling of Caister arrives from the Yarmouth area.

e Calder Bank.
One of the smaller hamlets Iater absorbed into making up Davyhulme. Calder Bank had a boarding school for ladies in 1841 the

3 * principle was Hannah Barker. The estate of Calderbank was opened up by the builder Maunders in
1953 with a projected 350 homes. 1955 showed several advertisements offering the first shopping
facilities for this new Urmston Council housing scheme. Vacant was for a butcher, an ironmonger,
a chemist or greengrocer. A Calder is Scottish for a ‘small stream’.

Names here are for 1891 included James Taylor as a florist, Thomas Rogerson the farmer and
William Rogers as a market gardener. These professions suggest a connection to the Farm and
Nursery of this area.

e Calderbank Avenue. Davyhulme
13 flats out of 43 homes make up the avenue. Semidetached homes were bringing £50 per annum here in rent for 1893. OnIy
Uplands has been found as a named home here at No 1 & 2. . 7 b

Calderbank. Davyhulme

One abode still stands for the present called by name and it is dated 1884 as a remnant of the
community in the area. Only four families have been recorded for this home they are Parr,
Pough, Gagan and Hemani.

Calderbank Cottages. Davyhulme ‘ K

There were two cottages noted for 1861 in close proximity to the Calderbank House. Residents there at this time were James
Owen and James Peers. The year of 1926 had this as one establishment with six compact rooms, a bathroom, and all modern
conveniences except electricity. The services included gas and water. Outside were stables, coach house, workshop, and barn.
Some rose and fruit trees came along as an afterthought.

Alfred Peacock was taking in dogs for the kennels at the cottage in 1938, later and better
known as A. Partington & Sons Welfed Kennels. The building today is a replacement for the
first which was destroyed by fire; it has been styled to be in keeping with the old architecture.

Calderbank Farm. Davyhulme

One of many early farms of distinction from 1717 once belonging to John Gregory but now demolished after being sold for
redevelopment. The farm was advertised for sale in 1864 it comprised of 25 acres including the large house. The usual,
shippon's, stables, and barns, two orchards, and a market garden made up the farm on offer. Some of the field names included:
Finney, Big Bean Carr, Shoe Broad, and Hey Carr. There were eight fields in all excluding the house, lane, orchards, and hen croft.
The area of Lee’s fields was the local for the farm in fact it sat on the fields called Calder Bank. Next traced was James and Rachel
Richardson for 1871. Arthur Lees inherited the farm from his father and leased it out to several famers over the years. 1898 it was
Hannah Rogers followed by Robert Bennett into 1908. Two later families were that of Burgess who were there around 1920 and
William Hall for 1928. An Albert Burgess is dated for 1958. Council ordered the demolition of all the remaining outbuildings in 1966.

Calderbank House. Davyhulme

The year of 1867 noted the Leigh Family living there with all its surrounding lands put up for auction the following year 1868. A
starting name for these earliest of times was William McKinnel in 1891. Moving to 1898 the directories have it placed on the north
side numbered as 140 and at home, James Alker. 1901 it belonged to the Walker family namely James. From a sale pitch in 1908
the dwelling, now referred to as Woodsend Road and on the west side, included a piggery, coach house with stables, and two
acres of land. Selling was Cyril Thornber. The added rooms followed in 1881 when once more put up for sale by owner Miss. M.
Smith. There was a hall with fireplace, large drawing room and dining room, five bedrooms and a bath room. The domestic offices
consisted of a kitchen, scullery, dairy and laundry. In the total 8 % acres there was an orchard with a shippon and barn. Henry
Coppal for 1927 appears to be the last occupant of the original house.
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For Real Estate purposes there is a named house number 348 on the north side of Davyhulme and Woodsend Roads called this,
and it shows 1884 for the time of some alteration. This could also be explained if the house was built, or rebuilt, with materials from
the original Calder Bank House when it was removed in the 1930’s for development.

Calderbank Nursery. Davyhulme

The nursery, in all probability, belonged to the farm, house, or cottage. Adam Fallows was the 1887 gardener there together with
his wife Ann. The location has not been confirmed but it could be confused with Fowden Nursery. A 1939 nurseryman is recorded
for here he was J. Braithwaite.

Fowden Nursery. Calderbank Avenue

The closing of this market garden in 1909 showed that William Henry Fowden owned two acres of land at the end of the avenue.
His main produce was based on home grown apples and flowers. A speciality was orchids of which it was noted as being a large
and splendid collection. The business was taken by Norman Brownhill. The nursery was made up of 2 acres and 24 greenhouses,
a potting shed and storage sheds. Five boilers and piping were supplied by Manchester Corporation water.

Uplands. Calderbank Avenue

For 1900 this was the only home along the avenue and living there were Arthur Robert Brett and
William Henry Fowden. The house is only recorded as Uplands from 1909 and confirmed by sale
of the property. The house itself was semidetached and had a large hall, six bedrooms, two
~entertaining rooms and the entire etcetera. Further to this it was well cellared and had a stable

+ detached from the house. A conservatory was attached with large lawn and kitchen garden. The
3 house was approached by a 240ft driveway seriously reduced for modern days. By the time 1939
came around the names here were Harry Davies and William Stuecklin.

e Calder Court. Davyhulme
12 properties numbered as 1-11 with an added 23A. Urmston Council called for tenders here in
December of 1959, to be built; 19 old people’s bungalows with warden and communal
accommodation, they were completed by 1962. This court was totally replaced by 2013-14 with
a new development and offered to the public.

e Calver Close. Flixton
Possibly linked to the old farm of Calver, the Close has 10 properties. Calver is also a north Derbyshire town.

e Cambridge Road. Flixton 1900
This was a very small road in its early days it only had three houses on the east side which formed
a small terrace. Reaching a time of 1911 there were 8 dwellings, this is now up to 28 plus one flat
for 2010. Cambridge is a cul-de-sac. Peter Monks claimed number 1 on the west side.
Unconfirmed is that he was the first to be housed in the corner shop of Victor Terrace on Church
Road with a dairy outlet. The stonemason who created the cenotaph on Davyhulme Circle lived at
number 28 he was Thomas Maclaughlan.

e Canterbury Road. Davyhulme
For the year of 1928 this road accounted for ten homes. Canterbury Road today accounts for 210 housed families with 10
additional places which are commercial. This road was completed to Moss Vale in 1935. A doctor, Basil Lee M.R.C.S. L.R. C. P.
held offices at 186 down the road for 1939.

Canterbury Road shopping.

A line of nine are presented as established in 1935 with the name of H. Whittle entering the
proposal to council. The first shop was George Masons he was a Grocer. The list continues as
John Bamford Butcher, C. Rosebourne Chemist, J. Todd Ltd. Newsagent, J. Todd Ltd. Baker, J.
Todd Ltd. Draper, Thomas Brennen Fish and Chips, Fredrick Umbers Hardware Distributer,
Lawrence Speight Greengrocer.

Davyhulme Infant & Junior Schools. Canterbury Road
Little detail other than it was built in 1939 and opened in the
following year. The school has a logo of two Owls. A school
was put out for tender in 1949 by the Lancashire County as
Davyhulme Junior but it is unknown if this was a
replacement or a new branch of the existing school.

e Carden Avenue. Flixton
1,2,3,4, are all th